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          1  HEALTH AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm Christine

          3  Quinn, and I'm Chair of the City Council's Health

          4  Committee, and I'm joined today by members of both

          5  the Health Committee and the Consumer Affairs

          6  Committee. Council Member John Liu is pinch hitting

          7  as the Chair of the Consumer Affairs, and we're here

          8  today to have a first hearing on Intro. 708, which

          9  is a local law to amend the Administrative Code of

         10  the City of New York in relation to reducing

         11  no-fault motor vehicle insurance, which has been

         12  introduced by Council Member David Yassky who will

         13  be joining with us in a few minutes.

         14                 We were joined earlier by Council

         15  Member Jimmy Oddo. We have Council Member Kendall

         16  Stewart, John Liu, Council Member Maria Carmen del

         17  Arroyo from the Bronx, and Council Member Helen

         18  Sears from Queens. And I'm sure we'll be joined by

         19  others, there's a couple of hearings going on,

         20  including a big one across the street about the

         21  Building Code, so people will probably be in and

         22  out. I'm just going to say a few things about Intro.

         23  708 and let's see if Council Member Liu has anything

         24  to add, and then we'll hear from author of the bill,

         25  Council Member Yassky, before we begin hearing
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          2  testimony.

          3                 Bill 708 will work to reduce

          4  instances of no-fault auto insurance and fraud by

          5  setting up a system of monitoring, tracking and

          6  reporting businesses that have fraudulent practices.

          7                 The bill will also create a new

          8  licensing requirement for certain businesses that

          9  are more likely to commit fraud.

         10                 We're going to hear testimony today

         11  from the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene and

         12  the Department of Consumer Affairs, some folks

         13  involved with the insurance industry, folks from the

         14  Trial Lawyers Association and others.

         15                 This is the first hearing of this

         16  bill. The bill also addresses making it illegal for

         17  people to engage in -- I don't know that profession

         18  is the right word, but the practice of being runners

         19  or for companies to hire people to be runners in

         20  this insurance fraud game.

         21                 And today, as I said, is our first

         22  hearing, so there's obviously no vote on the bill

         23  since it is a first hearing, and I'll turn it over

         24  to Council Member Liu and then we'll hear from

         25  Council Member Yassky.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you

          3  very much. It's my distinct honor to, number one,

          4  co-chair this hearing today with my distinguished

          5  colleague, Council Member Christine Quinn, and

          6  doubly honored to do so on behalf of Council Member

          7  Philip Reed, the Chairperson of the Consumer Affairs

          8  Committee.

          9                 Today we certainly would like to

         10  thank Councilman Yassky for bringing the important

         11  and costly issue of deceptive medical billing to the

         12  Council's attention.

         13                 This is the first hearing on Intro.

         14  708, as Council Member Quinn has already stated,

         15  aiming to reduce consumer insurance rates by

         16  addressing no-fault insurance fraud in New York

         17  City.

         18                 State law mandates that all

         19  automobile owners who are insured in New York pay

         20  into the state's no-fault fund.

         21                 The system was originally intended to

         22  simplify the claims process and reduce overall

         23  premiums because regardless of fault, claims of up

         24  to $50,000 are immediately paid for medical

         25  treatment on injuries sustained in auto collisions.
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          2                 Despite the Legislature's intentions,

          3  automobile insurance rates have dramatically

          4  increased, particularly in New York City, since the

          5  plan went into effect in the mid-seventies. Fraud is

          6  one of the main causes.

          7                 The most contemptable no-fault fraud

          8  involves a scheme where a medical clinic is

          9  established for the purpose of billing and

         10  overbilling insurance providers.

         11                 However, unlike legitimate medical

         12  practices, these fraudulent medical clinics often

         13  have insufficient equipment and personnel to support

         14  the treatments they claim to offer.

         15                 In addition, many of the billed

         16  services are unnecessary, or perhaps worse, never

         17  actually performed.

         18                 Intro. No. 708 attempts to combat

         19  no-fault automobile insurance fraud in New York City

         20  by prohibiting the employment of runners.

         21  Individuals hired by these fraudulent medical

         22  clinics to recruit claimants creating a reporting

         23  system to determine the medical clinics that process

         24  a high volume of no-fault insurance claims and

         25  requiring medical clinics that have 50 percent or
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          2  more of its claims filed through no-fault insurance

          3  to obtain a license and post a $100,000 bond.

          4                 We have invited the Administration,

          5  as well as several interested parties, to

          6  participate in today's hearing. I want to thank

          7  Thomas Ferugia, the Legislative Counsel to the

          8  Consumer Affairs Committee, and all of my colleagues

          9  for attending this hearing, and I turn the floor

         10  back over to Chairwoman Quinn.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         12  much, and now I'm going to turn it over to Council

         13  Member David Yassky, who is the author of Intro.

         14  708.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

         16  Chairs Quinn, and Acting Chair Liu. I want to get

         17  right away to the meat of the hearing, because I

         18  know -- I think we're hearing from a large group of

         19  folks, not too large by any means because there's a

         20  lot of substance to go through here. I want to get

         21  right to that. I just want to frame this issue, if I

         22  can, by saying it's clear to me that we have a

         23  problem. That problem is auto insurance rates that

         24  are way too high in New York City and particularly

         25  in Brooklyn, and I should start out really by
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          2  crediting the Borough President of Brooklyn, Marty

          3  Markowitz, who I know we're going to hear from

          4  later. My interest in this was really spurred to act

          5  by a report that the Borough President put out, over

          6  a year ago, I guess, now, showing how inflated or

          7  how high auto insurance rates are, particularly in

          8  Brooklyn, but throughout the City, and

          9  demonstrating, I believe that part of the reason the

         10  rates are too high is because of fraud. And John Liu

         11  went through some of the specifics here, we're going

         12  to hear more about that later. I believe that it's

         13  something that we need to be addressing and we ought

         14  to be addressing. This bill is a stab at doing that.

         15  If it's not perfect, as I'm sure it's not, then my

         16  hope is that we can figure out how to improve it or

         17  change it and get something better, but I do believe

         18  it's something that we do need to be addressing. We

         19  were paying more than twice as much as some of the

         20  surrounding counties. Part of that may be due to

         21  legitimate underwriting issues, but part of it is

         22  due to fraud, and in particular, the folks who do go

         23  into business specifically to go after no-fault

         24  dollars. So, I look forward to this hearing and just

         25  Chairs Quinn and Liu, I thank you very much for
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          2  scheduling the hearing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: You're very

          4  welcome. And we're going to call up the first panel,

          5  representing the Administration. Joyce Weinstein,

          6  the Assistant Commissioner for the Division of

          7  Health Care Access and Improvement at the Department

          8  of Health and Mental Hygiene, who must have very,

          9  very, very big business cards. And Pauline Toole,

         10  the Assistant Commissioner at the Department of

         11  Consumer Affairs who is very, very coordinated for

         12  the holiday. And obviously, before testifying, if

         13  you would both, before you start to speak, identify

         14  yourself for the record.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN:

         16  Good afternoon. I'm Joyce Weinstein, the Assistant

         17  Commissioner of Health Care Access and Improvement

         18  with the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I am

         20  Pauline Toole. I'm the Assistant Commissioner for

         21  the City's Department of Consumer Affairs.

         22                 MR. MARTIN: I'm William Martin with

         23  the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN:

         25  Okay. With that, thank you for the opportunity to
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          2  testify. I'm Joyce Weinstein, the Assistant

          3  Commissioner of the Department of Health and Mental

          4  Hygiene.

          5                 As you know, the Department's mission

          6  is to protect and promote the health of all New

          7  Yorkers. In doing so, our primary activities and

          8  expertise lie in disease prevention and health

          9  promotion, including the monitoring and tracking of

         10  the health of New Yorkers, health education and the

         11  investigation and containment of disease outbreaks

         12  and environmental threats.

         13                 The Department also promotes access

         14  to health care through Medicaid Managed Care and

         15  other insurance programs. We accomplish this through

         16  contracts with Medicaid Managed Care organizations

         17  plans, through which we monitor the delivery of

         18  managed care services in conjunction with the State

         19  Health Department, as well as through assistance to

         20  uninsured persons to facilitate their enrollment

         21  into the public health insurance programs.

         22                 And I'm describing these activities

         23  so that the Committee can appreciate that our

         24  expertise and function lies in health insurance

         25  access, not billing, not payment, and not monitoring
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          2  of health insurance claims in any aspect of

          3  automobile, life or property insurance.

          4                 While the fraudulent billing of

          5  third-part insurers, whether no-fault auto

          6  insurance, Medicaid or any other insurer, is of

          7  great concern for all of us, other government

          8  agencies at the state level have the responsibility

          9  and expertise to address these issues.

         10                 For example, the State Department of

         11  Education has the statutory responsibility to

         12  license and regulate the medical profession. The

         13  State Departments of Health and Insurance have

         14  responsibility for oversight and regulation of

         15  medical professionals with regard to fraudulent

         16  billing practices.

         17                 The bill you're considering today,

         18  Intro 708, would provide a reporting and licensing

         19  system for no-fault medical providers, to present

         20  those who are suspected of fraudulent activities

         21  from providing no-fault covered services.

         22                 We strongly oppose this bill for

         23  three reasons. First, we believe the bill simply

         24  would not be effective in reducing no-fault fraud.

         25                 Second, we believe the bill's
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          2  operational provisions would be impossible for us to

          3  administer effectively, as well as costly to

          4  implement, as we lack the relevant information and

          5  monitoring ability to ensure that the data received

          6  is complete and accurate.

          7                 Third, the State has already

          8  regulated in this area and additional bills are

          9  pending in Albany. Intro. 708 would likely operate

         10  inconsistently with these current impending state

         11  laws.

         12                 I'd like to address these items in

         13  order.

         14                 First, the bill would not be

         15  effective in reducing no-fault fraud. Under Intro.

         16  708, high volume, no-fault medical providers would

         17  be subject to licensing by the Department of

         18  Consumer Affairs and scrutiny by the Department of

         19  Health and Mental Hygiene.

         20                 Our Department would be required to

         21  identify all health professionals and clinics that

         22  submitted claims to auto insurance companies for

         23  no-fault personal injury protection services, and

         24  determine if they are high volume providers by

         25  determining whether more than 50 percent of their
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          2  claims are no-fault claims.

          3                 The basis of the calculation for

          4  identifying high-volume providers, which focuses

          5  solely on claims filed by the provider, is

          6  fundamentally flawed for a number of reasons.

          7                 First, claims can include more than

          8  one procedure. Thus, the sheer number of claims

          9  filed by a provider will not address the issue of

         10  fraudulent billing.

         11                 Second, policy holders can file

         12  claims themselves, therefore, a corrupt provider,

         13  anxious to avoid scrutiny, simply will not take

         14  assignment of the claim.

         15                 Without claim assignment and filing

         16  by clinics, there would be no way for the Department

         17  to meaningfully audit the accuracy of data provided

         18  by the clinics, vis-a-vis the service they provided,

         19  and were ultimately paid for under a claimant's or

         20  patient's no-fault auto insurance.

         21                 Third, even if no-fault insurance

         22  voluntarily reported information to the Department

         23  as it contemplated in the legislation, we would have

         24  no way of verifying the number of medical claims

         25  other than no-fault claims submitted by a provider
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          2  and calculate the ratio of no-fault claims to other

          3  medical claims.

          4                 Finally, even if these statistics of

          5  no-fault volume were accurate, there is simply no

          6  way that the Department can, from the data alone,

          7  and without review of any individual claims, make

          8  conclusions about fraudulent activity.

          9                 I'm not an expert on insurance fraud,

         10  nor is anyone in the Department, but we fail to see

         11  how such a determination of suspected fraud could be

         12  made based on strictly numerical information that is

         13  reported, even if one assumed that information is

         14  correct or verifiable, even the most tentative

         15  conclusions about the possibility of fraud, require

         16  review of individual claims to identify the accident

         17  at issue, the policy holder and injured parties and

         18  the providers of the services, data that would not

         19  be available to the Department.

         20                 It would therefore be impossible for

         21  us to promulgate meaningful standards and guidelines

         22  indicating when we would refer a case to the State

         23  Insurance Department for further investigation.

         24                 Second, the operational provisions

         25  would be impossible for the Department to administer
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          2  effectively, and would be costly to implement.

          3  Nowhere does the bill limit its scope to providers

          4  located in New York City or to accidents occurring

          5  within the City, or to cases involving alleged

          6  injuries to New York City residents alone. Thus, the

          7  universe of entities required to report to us

          8  potentially includes the entire roster of medical

          9  professions licensed by New York State, including

         10  physicians, nurses, social workers, physical

         11  therapists, psychologists and chiropractors. This

         12  would be a staggering number.

         13                 The Education Department reports that

         14  Statewide there are literally over a quarter million

         15  licensed medical professionals, all of whom

         16  potentially would have to be queried for their

         17  filing of no-fault claims.

         18                 This bill would require the

         19  development of an enormously expensive database

         20  system, and infrastructure to receive, verify and

         21  enforce reporting by this huge universe of medical

         22  practitioners in order to identify a small subset of

         23  high volume, no-fault medical providers who may

         24  possibly be billing no-fault auto insurers

         25  fraudulently.
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          2                 At the least, this would require for

          3  us an immense initiative to enroll all potential

          4  reporting professionals; the initiation and

          5  establishment of identity management, and user

          6  authentication systems; the establishment and

          7  publication of file format and protocols to allow

          8  automated data exchanges, and secure automated

          9  electronic exchanges with insurance agencies and

         10  other government agencies; the creation and

         11  maintenance of a web-based reporting system and a

         12  secure database to house provider reports; and,

         13  finally, the establishment of an infrastructure

         14  within the Department to maintain and support these

         15  activities.

         16                 As far as we see, quite simply the

         17  cost of these activities would far outweigh any

         18  value in detecting fraud.

         19                 Finally, the State already has

         20  regulated in this area. It's our belief that

         21  meaningful implementation of comprehensive

         22  regulatory control lies within the State Insurance

         23  Department.

         24                 Indeed, significant action on the

         25  State level has already occurred. And additional
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          2  bills are pending in both houses in Albany to

          3  accomplish further reforms.

          4                 Reforms recently enacted include

          5  Section 5109 of the State Insurance Law, which

          6  allows New York State Department of Health to

          7  decertify or restrict quote/unquote bad actors from

          8  providing health services under no-fault motor

          9  vehicle insurance. The criteria for decertifying a

         10  fraudulent provider differ between Intro. 708 and

         11  this new State law in that the State law does not

         12  even include the 50 percent of business threshold

         13  found in Intro. 708.

         14                 Moreover, the new State law

         15  implements a comprehensive and uniformed system for

         16  dealing with fraudulent claims on a statewide basis,

         17  whereas Intro. 708 addresses the problem only on a

         18  local basis.

         19                 Other new State insurance law and

         20  regulatory amendments limit the fees that providers

         21  can charge under no-fault insurance, and

         22  substantially shorten the time period for reporting

         23  auto accident injuries and submitting bills for

         24  medical treatment. State law, thus, does what Intro.

         25  708 aims to do, but with broader authority and lower
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          2  thresholds for identifying and restricting and/or

          3  prohibiting fraudulent provider activity.

          4                 In closing, I must reiterate that the

          5  issue of insurance fraud is an important one and

          6  deserved appropriate and full attention.

          7                 However, this attention is best given

          8  by those with the broadest authority and greatest

          9  experience in doing so.

         10                 With that in mind, we encourage the

         11  Council to further explore existing fraud prevention

         12  efforts and initiatives at the State level. Thank

         13  you for the opportunity to present the views of the

         14  Department today.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Good

         16  afternoon, Chairperson Quinn, Acting Chairman Liu,

         17  and members of the Health and Consumer Affairs

         18  Committee. I am Pauline Toole. I'm an Assistant

         19  Commissioner at the City Department of Consumer

         20  Affairs, and Acting Commissioner Mintz asked me to

         21  thank you for the opportunity to prevent our views

         22  today on the provisions of Intro. 708 that would

         23  require the Department to license no-fault insurance

         24  medical clinics.

         25                 This bill would add a new licensing
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          2  category for no-fault insurance medical clinics to

          3  the 55 other business categories the Department now

          4  licenses.

          5                 Broadly speaking, it would require

          6  the Department to license medical clinics when data

          7  acquired by the Health Department shows that 50

          8  percent more of all claims filed for medical

          9  benefits are no-fault medical claims.

         10                 The laudatory purpose of this

         11  legislation clearly is to address the issue of

         12  no-fault medical insurance fraud that drives up auto

         13  insurance cost to New York City residents.

         14                 The Department is keenly aware of how

         15  crime impacts on insurance costs, having on several

         16  occasions considered the impact of auto thefts on

         17  insurance rates, our experience, however, has been

         18  that the DCA's and the City's jurisdiction to

         19  address these issues is exceedingly limited.

         20                 The Department's objection to the

         21  proposed licensing requirement is that it widely

         22  misses its target of reigning in no-fault medical

         23  fraud. It flips the purpose of licensing on its

         24  head. General speaking, licenses confer legitimacy

         25  to businesses by indicating that the business meets
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          2  specified standards. In this case, however, the

          3  license confers imprimatur of suspicion.

          4                 Assistant Commissioner Weinstein has

          5  just detailed the reasons that would make it next to

          6  impossible for the Health Department to determine

          7  with any degree of accuracy whether 50 percent or

          8  more of a medical clinic's claims are filed as

          9  no-fault medical claims.

         10                 Since the Department of Health lacks

         11  the capability of determining with any accuracy

         12  whether a clinic meets the licensing standard, the

         13  bill creates an illusory licensing criteria for

         14  identifying businesses required to be licensed to

         15  operate.

         16                 This difficulty in identifying who is

         17  required to be licensed would be a barrier to

         18  enforcement, even under the best case scenario of

         19  all practitioners honestly reporting their claims

         20  data.

         21                 Enforcement would, however, become

         22  impossible under the actual conditions that likely

         23  would prevail.

         24                 The bill, after all, seeks to combat

         25  the medical fraud being committed by the very
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          2  persons who would be required to provide the data

          3  that would be used to identify them as bad actors

          4  and trigger the licensing requirement. The easiest

          5  method to defeat the purpose of the legislation is

          6  for these providers to report false data about their

          7  claims. It's therefore far too much to expect that

          8  anyone prepared to commit the primary fraud of

          9  filing full phony medical claims would expose

         10  themselves to regulation by the Department of

         11  Consumer Affairs, by providing honest data about

         12  their activities.

         13                 Fraudulent medical providers could

         14  also easily devise numerous subterfuges to avoid the

         15  reporting requirements entirely, such as

         16  manipulating who actually filed no-fault medical

         17  claims.

         18                 The conditions triggering the

         19  licensing requirement would therefore -- it's very

         20  unlikely that they would ever catch those engaged in

         21  fraud, but the data reporting requirements would

         22  impose an enormous additional burden on all honest

         23  providers who would be required to report claims

         24  data to the Health Department.

         25                 We have no doubt that the problems
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          2  and costs caused by filing fraudulent no-fault

          3  claims deserve to be addressed. But the problem we

          4  think is best and most effectively addressed by

          5  directly identifying and going after the fraudulent

          6  activity, rather than indirectly by imposing a

          7  massive data gathering process that might identify

          8  who could be engaging in fraud.

          9                 The effort and resources that would

         10  have to be committed to do the job contemplated by

         11  this bill seem to be vastly out of proportion to the

         12  results we believe it would achieve.

         13                 We thank you, again, for the

         14  opportunity to comment and we're prepared to answer

         15  any questions you have.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. I'm

         18  going to turn the mike over for the first round of

         19  questioning to my colleague Council Member David

         20  Yassky.

         21                 But just before I do that, I want to

         22  thank Ann Thomas, the Legislative Counsel to the

         23  Committee, for her work, along with Tom from the

         24  Consumer Affairs Committee, on this bill.

         25                 Council Member Yassky.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

          3  Chair Quinn. Let me just ask Ms. Weinstein and

          4  Assistant Commissioner Toole, has either of you read

          5  Borough President Markowitz's report on the topic of

          6  insurance fraud?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I did

          8  at the time.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And you nodded

         10  as well?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: I

         12  did not, no.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Oh, okay.

         14                 So, the premise of that report,

         15  right, was that there is a, I don't want to repeat

         16  myself, there is a significant portion of the high

         17  auto insurance rates that New Yorkers pay, and maybe

         18  you don't agree they're high, but let's for the sake

         19  of argument say that you do agree they're high, and

         20  could and should be lowered, a significant portion

         21  of that is due to fraud, and some of the methods of

         22  fraud that were detailed in that report, all of

         23  them, really, involved medical providers who go into

         24  business specifically for the purpose of dealing

         25  with the no-fault system. For rhetorical I would say
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          2  milking the no-fault system, but in terms of dealing

          3  with the no-fault system.

          4                 Now, there may well be legitimate

          5  business reasons for medical providers to say I'm

          6  going to go into business and just deal with auto

          7  accident victims. Although, on the face of it that

          8  would be surprising, right? One would think that if

          9  you're a medical provider, you're going to get

         10  patients from all over the place, whose conditions

         11  are caused by all sorts of things.

         12                 So, let me start by asking, do you

         13  think it's, first of all, do you know, and let me

         14  ask Ms. Weinstein, I guess, the Department of

         15  Health, do you have any sense, ball park, how many

         16  providers are there out there who deal exclusively

         17  or close to exclusively with no fault?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN:

         19  Again, this is not an area that the Department is

         20  familiar with. I couldn't even venture to say how

         21  many.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Do you think

         23  it's a widespread phenomenon discussed in that

         24  report? Or you wouldn't have any idea?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: I
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          2  really wouldn't have any idea.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Has the

          4  Department thought at all about how we in the City

          5  might be able to do to reduce auto insurance rates,

          6  do you think?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN:

          8  Again, it's not within the --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Not our job.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN:

         11  It's not within the Department of Health and Mental

         12  Hygiene. Not to say that other agencies haven't

         13  considered this.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. Not your

         15  Department, I understand.

         16                 Has the Department of Consumer

         17  Affairs?

         18                 Well, let me ask you some of the

         19  questions. Do you think, is it a widespread

         20  phenomenon that there are medical providers

         21  established for the purpose of treating auto

         22  accident victims?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I think

         24  that the phenomenon exists and it is, I'm not sure

         25  if I'd use the word "widespread," but I think there
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          2  are extensive -- there are a lot of such providers

          3  around.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And do you

          5  think that those providers are, as you inherently

          6  suspect, as you put it in your testimony, you say

          7  the bill kind of treats them that way. I agree with

          8  you, that's the premise.

          9                 The premise of the bill, it's a

         10  physical therapy office that's set up to treat only

         11  no-fault victims, only car accident victims and that

         12  is going to bill the no-fault system as the

         13  exclusive or virtually exclusive source. It's

         14  revenue, that there is something suspect about that.

         15  That's the premise of the bill.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

         17  Absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Do you agree

         19  with that premise?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: That

         21  there is a problem that people are ripping off

         22  consumers in New York by those claims?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, that's a

         24  different question.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: Yes.

                                                            27

          1  HEALTH AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So we agree

          3  with that. How about the question I asked about, do

          4  you think most of the folks that are set up and they

          5  get all their revenue from no-fault are perfectly

          6  legitimate, and it's a tiny fraction of them that

          7  are engaging in fraud? Or you think it is indeed

          8  inherently suspect because many of them are engaging

          9  in fraud? Which of those do you think is true?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE: I think

         11  that the latter is more likely to be true.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I agree with

         13  you. I mean, I will tell you, I've spoken with some

         14  folks who we're going to hear from later who argue

         15  that that's not true, that it's legitimate and this

         16  hearing, you know, will put some evidence on the

         17  record there, and I hope the Committee will make an

         18  informed judgment.

         19                 But starting out, I agree with you

         20  that's true. So if that's true, then for goodness

         21  sake, oughtn't we do something about it, and that's

         22  what this bill is supposed to do. I mean, once

         23  you've said, our insurance rates are so high, part

         24  of the problem is fraud, the method of fraud are

         25  these folks that are set up to milk the no-fault
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          2  system, let's try and go after them. And I have to

          3  say, not the Consumer Affairs testimony, but

          4  certainly the Health testimony really is written to

          5  be unhelpful and unconstructive, I have to say.

          6  Rather than say yes, there's a problem, let's see

          7  what we can do about it.

          8                 If it's your position, by the way,

          9  that the City government should not be involved in

         10  this at all, we should leave it to the state, okay?

         11  I can accept that position. Or rather I understand

         12  that position. It's my belief that our constituents

         13  want us to work for them and try and solve the

         14  problems that they face, and not say, sorry, that's

         15  his job or that's her job, and leave it to Congress

         16  and leave it to the State, in an area where

         17  manifestly the State and the Congress have not done

         18  their job since we're paying insurance rates that

         19  are far too high.

         20                 So, I don't want to go kind of point

         21  by point through the testimony of the Administration

         22  folks, Chair Quinn, because I really would like to

         23  get to the meat of the hearing, but I would say,

         24  once you agree -- you know, I guess what I would say

         25  is, once you've said, yes, here's the problem, it's
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          2  these folks who are set up to rip off no-fault

          3  system, that's a problem, then I would say let's try

          4  and get at it.

          5                 By the way, I could see saying we

          6  don't need to have every medical provider in New

          7  York State -- by the way, the bill plainly, maybe

          8  not plainly, was not intended to have every provider

          9  in the state. And was maybe intended as a helpful

         10  constructive point, and if so, you're absolutely

         11  right, it should only deal with New York City.

         12                 I don't think you need even deal with

         13  every provider in New York City, maybe it should

         14  really focus on the ones that are dealing all, or

         15  almost all with the no-fault system, but let's

         16  figure out a way to get those folks before the

         17  government so we can put them out of business if

         18  they don't deserve to be in business.

         19                 Thank you, Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I have a couple of

         21  questions and Council Member Sears has a couple of

         22  questions, and we've also been joined by Council

         23  Member Charles Barron of Brooklyn.

         24                 In the, and more DOH's than DCA's,

         25  but there was testimony about how costly this bill
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          2  would be to implement.

          3                 Do you have an estimate of what you

          4  think that cost would be?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: Not

          6  at the moment. The cost is really to, and I have

          7  our, in fact, some of our folks who deal with

          8  infrastructure and IS systems here, but in terms of,

          9  as we reported in terms of the enrolling of

         10  professionals, who are now required to report to

         11  have to do a secure identity management

         12  authentication system, automating and securing all

         13  the electronic data exchanges with the providers,

         14  with the insurers, with other government agencies

         15  and have a web-based system, this will all cost

         16  money. As far as I know, we have not done the

         17  estimate to support that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I'm not saying it

         19  is or isn't too much, but how do you come -- I mean,

         20  most things cost something, you know what I mean?

         21  And sometimes it's a negligible amount and sometimes

         22  an amount that's a lot but it's worth spending given

         23  the problem, and sometimes it's a lot and you spend

         24  it, in the long run you actually end up saving money

         25  or you deliver such a great service, you know, it's
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          2  money worth spending.

          3                 So, just tell me what the

          4  Department's process is by which you come to the

          5  determination that you state, you know, that you

          6  make the statements made in the testimony, if you

          7  haven't done a cost estimate.

          8                 Or what's the process you go through

          9  that, short of a cost estimate?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN:

         11  Again, it's based on the infrastructure and the

         12  other types of IT systems that would have to be put

         13  into place for this to develop a secure,

         14  confidential system, and it's not something that we

         15  have done.

         16                 So, based on our previous experience

         17  of doing any kind of IT function, along, or akin to

         18  some of these functions, it has been costly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And costly means?

         20  I'm just trying to get a frame of reference for the

         21  Committee.

         22                 Well, what did it cost the other

         23  times you did it for other areas?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: You

         25  know, I am not the expert. I am not the IT person,
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          2  quite frankly, for the Department, so I'm sure we

          3  could come up with some estimates as to what the

          4  cost is.

          5                 I think our point, though, is that

          6  there's no discussion, no dispute, that this issue

          7  is of concern, deserves, merits attention. But our

          8  feeling, again, in looking at cost benefit, that it

          9  best be given by, in this case the state, which has

         10  the broadest authority and experience in acting on

         11  these fraud and prevention efforts. Again, it's the

         12  State who license medical practitioners and

         13  providers. It's the State who deals and pays

         14  providers and deals with the billing. It's not us.

         15                 So, it's --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That may or may

         17  not be a valid point, it just seems a slightly

         18  different argument, and I guess, you know, the

         19  Committee will weigh these matters and I'm not a

         20  sponsor of the bill at the moment, so I have not yet

         21  taken a position on the bill, except to say it's

         22  clearly an important issue, and one that deserves

         23  the time of the Committee.

         24                 So, if the Department wants the

         25  Committee to weigh issues of cost, which I think are
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          2  valid for the Department to want the Committee to

          3  weigh, then if the Department wants us to

          4  responsibly weigh that, the Department is obligated

          5  to give us numbers or at least give us frames of

          6  reference, that when we had to do something that we

          7  think is three-quarters of what you're asking us to

          8  do, it cost us a million dollars.

          9                 So, it would be useful, if the

         10  Commission, the Department really wants the

         11  Committee to consider finances in this, then you

         12  need to get us some numbers.

         13                 Otherwise, short of that I don't

         14  really know how either of the Committees can

         15  responsibly weigh that.

         16                 So, I request that you get that to us

         17  in the most timely manner you can, otherwise, we

         18  will assume that you no longer want us to weigh cost

         19  in our deliberation of these matters.

         20                 As it relates to the State, does any

         21  State agency already keep a database of the medical

         22  providers we're talking about?

         23                 And if they do, couldn't we

         24  piggy-back on them, which would have a relevant

         25  decreasing effect on cost?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: I'm

          3  not sure if they do, and I don't want to misspeak on

          4  that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Could you reach

          6  out to your colleagues in the State and find out for

          7  us if they do?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN:

          9  Sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

         11                 Council Member Sears.

         12                 And we've been joined by the Borough

         13  President of Brooklyn, who as soon as we wrap up

         14  questioning, we will call you right up.

         15                 Council Member Sears.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Then I'll be

         17  very quick so that our Borough President can speak.

         18                 I'm trying to put all this into

         19  perspective, but it's apparent you don't approve of

         20  the proposed intro, and my question is, one of them,

         21  is the State doing much to please you in what they

         22  are doing to monitor or to dig out the fraud?

         23  Because I think we all recognize that there is fraud

         24  on this issue.

         25                 As a result, it really behooves
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          2  government to see what they can do, and all those

          3  perspective, and the different levels of government,

          4  to do what they can to weed this out.

          5                 Now, it seems that if the State is

          6  doing something, New York City still has a

          7  responsibility to do all they can to help weed out

          8  that fraud.

          9                 So, I think whatever State

         10  legislation exists or is proposed, the City still

         11  has to do what it has to do.

         12                 Do you have, from the State -- in

         13  other words, if you're so dependent upon the State

         14  to do that, and I recognize the different

         15  intricacies of the agency on the different levels of

         16  government, so I don't ask this naively. The fact

         17  is, you're so dependent upon an issue, on another

         18  level of government, that is very strong, very

         19  prevalent, and needs to be addressed, does the State

         20  keep the strongest of the insurers, those who seem

         21  to be having the largest percentage of no-fault

         22  insurance, do you have, and do they monitor that so

         23  that you get a report of that, because if the State,

         24  and what they have done about decertifying, and I

         25  read that and heard that in your testimony, it would

                                                            36

          1  HEALTH AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  seem that if they're going to do that, there would

          3  be a record, see who was decertified and what is the

          4  percentage of those larger groups that have no-fault

          5  insurance?

          6                 So, the City is dependent upon the

          7  State to do something for the City, it doesn't seem

          8  to be working too well.

          9                 As a result, would not the

         10  Administration and the Council look to see what they

         11  would come up with that would do something to help

         12  this problem?

         13                 So, I've asked a lot of questions in

         14  one, but I'm trying to reasonably present it to you,

         15  because something is not working, that's the bottom

         16  line. It's not working, or this issue would have

         17  gone away with all the rules and regulations, and

         18  the fact is, it hasn't, and it is a large

         19  proportion, I believe, to the premium rates, so

         20  that's why those questions.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: You

         22  know, all I can say is that some of the legislation

         23  that has been put into place and enacted by the

         24  State is fairly recent, so it still may be premature

         25  to know the full extent of the enforcement and how
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          2  effective it is.

          3                 That being said, though, as a result

          4  of that traditionally, not necessarily for this

          5  issue, but traditionally the State does share

          6  information about providers with us.

          7                 In this case there would probably be

          8  no doubt that if requested and discussed with them

          9  that some other kind of cooperative data exchange

         10  agreement probably could be worked out with the

         11  state who holds again the data warehouses about

         12  providers in general.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Does the

         14  Administration have any suggestions as to how we

         15  could assist the State in reducing this problem that

         16  the City has?

         17                 I realize it's statewide, but we have

         18  to deal with the City issues.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: I

         20  think that's what we were saying, that together with

         21  the Council we would be more than happy to explore

         22  how we could cooperate and look to the State and

         23  other initiatives and be able to do so.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: What kind of

         25  information do you have that would start that
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          2  process on a positive level?

          3                 In other words, do you have the list

          4  of providers that are the largest providers who

          5  handle the most of no-fault coverage?

          6                 Do you have in information they give

          7  to you what they are doing with that? What does it

          8  mean to decertify from those issues? Does that

          9  company still have the insurance or are they

         10  monitored?

         11                 Since this is new legislation and you

         12  work with them, do you have some of those answers

         13  that you could work with the Council on a positive

         14  level and not spend months and months exploring an

         15  issue that is growing?

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN:

         17  Currently we don't have that information.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Because I have

         19  to tell you, my reluctance is that the State doesn't

         20  move too quickly, and as a result I'm not very

         21  optimistic at how effective that could be in the

         22  time frame in which we should start to look at this.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: I

         24  can understand it's a very important issue, and

         25  concern to all.
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          2                 We don't have that information. The

          3  State at this point hasn't shared that information.

          4  I don't know what they're gathering within their

          5  data warehouse with regard to providers. Not to say

          6  that they haven't, but we haven't been privy'd to

          7  the information that they may have gathered about

          8  these providers.

          9                 All I know at this point, we don't

         10  gather that information.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Would you ask

         12  for that information?

         13                 Is there any reason why you would

         14  not?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN:

         16  Again, it would be a potential discussion, and

         17  developing a cooperative data exchange relationship

         18  with them, as we have with the State in other areas,

         19  with regard to providers.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: When you said

         21  that they haven't shared it with you, is that

         22  something that you've asked them to do?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEINSTEIN: No

         24  --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: That's my whole
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          2  point. Are you reluctant to do that? Or is there a

          3  reason why it's not done? Because the City is so

          4  dependent upon the State that it seems that we

          5  should have information just to be helpful in how

          6  the State could have a better situation.

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER TOOLE:

          8  Councilwoman, if I may, the Department, on several

          9  occasions, most recently last year, looked at a

         10  variety of auto insurance issues. We found it very

         11  difficult to get information about a whole variety

         12  of factors from the State Insurance Department.

         13                 So, we agree with your point that

         14  it's hard. It wasn't timely before our -- before the

         15  current Administration, and past Administrations the

         16  Department did two very well-regarded studies, and I

         17  know Borough President Markowitz reviewed them

         18  before he and his task force looked at this same

         19  issue. But always we were hampered by the level of

         20  the data we got and the timeliness of getting that

         21  data.

         22                 The Department was frustrated with

         23  its efforts in the past, and we could go on about

         24  that, if you really wanted us to.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Okay, but that
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          2  helps a lot, because it seems the frustration would

          3  also exist on a City level, if you in the

          4  Administration are having difficulty getting that,

          5  which means it would hamper any legislation that

          6  would be passed by this Council.

          7                 So, maybe we also have to look at how

          8  we can make the State more cooperative along those

          9  lines. That might be something that we would have to

         10  look at.

         11                 All right. Thank you very much.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I think that is

         14  all the questions we have for this panel. Thank you

         15  very much.

         16                 Next we're going to call up the

         17  Borough President of, maybe the Bronx? The Borough

         18  President of Brooklyn, Marty Markowitz.

         19                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: Although

         20  I love the Bronx. We call that Brooklyn Upstate. You

         21  know that.

         22                 Thank you so much. Thank you, members

         23  of the City Council. Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: And no offense was

         25  meant to the Bronx. I could have said any one of the
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          2  other four. We know how crazy he is about his

          3  borough.

          4                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: Yes. I

          5  love the Bronx.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Just identify

          7  yourself for the record.

          8                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: It

          9  starts with a B.

         10                 Yes, Marty Markowitz, Brooklyn

         11  Borough President.

         12                 Thank you very much, and thank you

         13  for inviting me. When the City Charter was revised

         14  in 1989, one of the awesome powers that the Charter

         15  Commission allowed Borough Presidents to have was

         16  the ability to introduce legislation in the City

         17  Council, provided a City Council member would agree

         18  to introduce it.

         19                 And on this, I have to say thank you

         20  to David Yassky, who shares my and Brooklyn's

         21  interest in reforming auto insurance fraud, as all

         22  the members of the City Council do for Brooklyn, and

         23  for partnering with my office to bring this bill to

         24  your attention.

         25                 Sky-high auto insurance rates have
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          2  turned Brooklyn into a hot bed of domestic tourism.

          3  All you gotta do is look at our license plates in

          4  many neighborhoods of Brooklyn, from Iowa and Utah

          5  and Vermont, Minnesota, Ohio and Florida. Now, I can

          6  assure you, these were not the tourists we're

          7  looking for, and I can doubly assure you that they

          8  sleep in Brooklyn every night of the week.

          9                 Brooklyn's auto insurance rates are

         10  among the highest anywhere in America. A report that

         11  my office released last year in cooperation with

         12  Brooklyn Assemblymember Jim Brennan found that for a

         13  35-year-old Brooklyn male, with a good driving

         14  record, the annual premium could be up to $4,500

         15  just for the minimum legal coverage, which is

         16  obviously far higher than anything in the State and

         17  the nation. If you go for full coverage, the premium

         18  jumps into the stratosphere.

         19                 Rates are so high that in many cases

         20  our residents pay more for car insurance in one year

         21  than they pay for their car.

         22                 Some Brooklynites who rely heavily on

         23  their cars are forced to decide between giving up

         24  their vehicles, or illegally issuing them in another

         25  state with lower rates, which is obviously why we
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          2  have so many tourists parked on our residential

          3  streets.

          4                 This bill goes to the heart of the

          5  cause of our sky-high rates, and that's fraud.

          6                 But the real fraud isn't Brooklynites

          7  looking for a better deal out of the State, it's the

          8  auto insurance medical mills that filed fabricated

          9  or inflated personal injury claims to take advantage

         10  of New York's no-fault policy at the expense of

         11  law-abiding Brooklynites and the rest of New York

         12  City.

         13                 A report highlighted the astronomic

         14  costs of fraudulent no-fault personal injury claims.

         15  In Brooklyn alone they amounted to hundreds of

         16  millions of dollars a year. More than one-third of

         17  the total for the entire state.

         18                 That's because Brooklyn is home to a

         19  full-blown industry, devoted specifically to auto

         20  insurance fraud, and we are not proud of this.

         21                 This is one area where I don't want

         22  Brooklyn to be at the top or anywhere near the top.

         23  And we're not alone, that's the sad -- Queens joins

         24  us, the Bronx joins us, parts of Long Island and

         25  even in Buffalo, as reported in the papers, have
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          2  similar problems.

          3                 The difference is who gets stuck

          4  holding the bill for auto insurance fees? You got it

          5  - Brooklynites and many other New Yorkers.

          6                 I must tell you, about a year and a

          7  half ago, I went to Newark Airport to rent a car,

          8  along with a television program, and they advertise

          9  the car, mid-size car at $69.95. And we rented a car

         10  for $69.95. When I got to the dollar rent a car show

         11  room, sales office, they had the car, Mr. Markowitz,

         12  in your name, thank you. License and registration. I

         13  showed them my license. And they came back and said

         14  the car will be $179.95 per day, not 69. And I asked

         15  them why the difference between your advertised

         16  price of $69 and you're charging me 179? And their

         17  answer was, because you're a Brooklyn resident.

         18                 And that's a clear example, by the

         19  way, that unfortunately is happening. That even when

         20  you rent cars, the minute they see a Brooklyn

         21  registration, namely that you reside in Brooklyn,

         22  you're automatically increased, in terms of your

         23  fee, more than others.

         24                 And, so, we are not going to tolerate

         25  this any longer, and I believe the Council won't
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          2  either.

          3                 On behalf of 2.6 million

          4  Brooklynites, I am here to support this bill which

          5  will add a critical tool to the effort to regulate

          6  and wipe out this fraud.

          7                 When we know who is operating the

          8  medical mills and how many of them we're dealing

          9  with, we can build on the positive results of the

         10  investigations and successful prosecutions we have

         11  witnessed recently.

         12                 Incidentally, you can't depend upon

         13  the insurance company on this. I wish we can. You

         14  would think that the insurance companies would be

         15  the most eager to stamp out the fraud. Sadly, it's

         16  not happened yet.

         17                 And so it may have to be government

         18  to frankly give them a push or whatever, if I can be

         19  more graphic. Because for them, passing on the cost

         20  to us, ultimately the honest driver, is the one

         21  that's the sack. We're the sack for all of this

         22  fraud, and so this is something that should not and

         23  could not and will not be tolerated in the future.

         24                 This bill also provides an

         25  enforcement mechanism for clinics that don't comply
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          2  with regulations. And the message to medical mills

          3  is clear, your game is over. It's time to stop

          4  ripping off honest, hard-working New Yorkers and to

          5  go out and try to make an honest living. It might do

          6  you some good.

          7                 This bill will also show the medical

          8  mill operators, as well as residents, insurance

          9  companies, City and State agencies, that New York

         10  City are serious about reducing auto insurance rates

         11  that have been embarrassingly far high for too long.

         12                 You know that a lot of our drivers,

         13  what they do is they buy insurance and let it lapse.

         14  Puts us all in danger because they can't afford the

         15  costs of insurance year-round.

         16                 Reducing fraud with the combination

         17  of beefed up law enforcement and increased

         18  cooperation between City and State agencies and

         19  changes in State Law, we put the ball in the court

         20  of insurance providers to join us and do their part

         21  by becoming responsible in this issue, corporate

         22  citizens who don't burden residents with their cost.

         23                 Since 2002, auto insurance fraud

         24  arrests have more than doubled, resulting in a 29

         25  percent decrease in what insurers are paying out to
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          2  settle claims in the private passenger segment of

          3  their business. But guess what? They only reduced

          4  our rates by about two to ten percent. The two

          5  largest insurers, All State and State Farm, have

          6  made cuts of only three and five percent.

          7                 Reducing fraud gives us the

          8  ammunition to demand more significant reductions in

          9  rates. By enacting this bill and future initiatives,

         10  we will put outrageous insurance rates where they

         11  belong, in the rearview mirror.

         12                 I want to urge the members of the

         13  City Council, I served in the Senate for 23 long

         14  Albany winters, don't wait for them. Please don't

         15  wait for them.

         16                 I have to tell you that. Under the

         17  current Administration, and with the Senate majority

         18  being in the hands of who it is, this is not the

         19  most important issue on their plate, I can assure

         20  you.

         21                 The cost of getting automobile

         22  insurance in Saratoga or in Troy, compared to

         23  Brooklyn, tells it all. There is frankly little

         24  motivation up there for those that represent those

         25  communities where auto insurance rates are very
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          2  modest to come to our rescue.

          3                 So, we've got to do everything we can

          4  with the leverage that New York City has to fight to

          5  make sure that there's equitable rates for

          6  automobile insurance fraud that the insurance

          7  companies step up to the plate and be as aggressive

          8  as they can and working hand-in-hand to rid

          9  ourselves of these medical mills that are frankly

         10  soaking up every penny they can and putting the onus

         11  on the great majority of Brooklyn motorists, as well

         12  as New York City, who are hard-working people that

         13  are just getting ripped off unbelievably.

         14                 Thank you very, very much. Thank you.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you,

         16  Mr. Borough President. We certainly thank you for

         17  always forcefully and very eloquently advocating on

         18  behalf of the people of your beautiful borough,

         19  arguably the tie for first place in terms of the

         20  best boroughs of this City.

         21                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: Is he

         22  building for tomorrow? Is that beautiful?

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LIU: We have

         24  questions from Council Member Yassky.

         25                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: I love
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          2  ambition. Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, first of

          4  all, before you arrived, Mr. Borough President, I

          5  said, and I just want to reiterate it with you here,

          6  thank you as a Brooklynite for working for me,

          7  because your report I think really brought this

          8  issue to the forefront and laid the substantive

          9  ground work for the City government to do something

         10  on it.

         11                 So, I just wanted to thank you and

         12  again say that this really, this bill that we're

         13  considering here, is just an effort to implement

         14  your proposals as brought forward in that report.

         15  So, thank you, again.

         16                 My one question you already answered.

         17  My question was should we wait for the State, and

         18  you said no. I will tell you, the Administration,

         19  the Bloomberg Administration representatives who

         20  testified before you, I'll just read you the last

         21  couple sentences of their testimony, "I reiterate,

         22  the issue of insurance fraud is an important one,

         23  deserves appropriate attention. We encourage the

         24  Council to further explore existing fraud prevention

         25  efforts and initiatives at the State level."
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          2                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: They

          3  have never served in Albany.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And I guess I

          5  share your belief that our constituents want us to

          6  act to deal with the problems that face us, that

          7  face them, and not wait for the governments, and

          8  say, well, it's their problem, it's not our problem.

          9                 So, I thank you. If you have anything

         10  to add, feel free, but I thank you for your

         11  testimony.

         12                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ:

         13  Councilman, I can assure you that if they had the

         14  same problems in those communities from Schimone

         15  County to Oneida and everything else, I can assure

         16  you that they would be as concerned as we are, but

         17  it ain't happening, and it's not going to happen, in

         18  my opinion, at any time in the near future.

         19                 So, it has to be New York City. We

         20  have to be responsive.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

         22  Chair.

         23                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: My

         24  pleasure. Thank you very, very much. Thank you.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON LIU: Thank you
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          2  very much, Council Member Yassky.

          3                 Council Member Barron has a few

          4  questions.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

          6  much. First, I just wanted to know if you would

          7  share some of the flowery language that you said you

          8  participate in --

          9                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: Wouldn't

         10  you like me to do that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I just wanted

         12  to know what the nature of that language would be.

         13                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: A

         14  jumpstart.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: A jumpstart,

         16  all right.

         17                 Is it true, does the report indicate,

         18  is it true that accidents, car accidents in Brooklyn

         19  and car theft in Brooklyn might even be down?

         20                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: The

         21  answer is absolutely, it is down. Absolutely.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right. And

         23  that's the thing that's so astonishing. Here we have

         24  accidents down, car theft down, yet insurance up.

         25                 And do you think race and class plays
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          2  a role in this at all?

          3                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: Yes, let

          4  me just tell you, there is a separate problem. Fraud

          5  is one problem, and then there is a separate

          6  problem, in terms of lower-income communities where

          7  there is a lack of availability of being able to get

          8  car insurance in the open market, and very often the

          9  assigned pool is where insurance agents steer their

         10  consumers because of a lack of availability of

         11  standard policies.

         12                 So, there's no question that that's a

         13  very good possibility, yes.

         14                 But the fraud thing aggravates it

         15  even further.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Right, even

         17  further. Because the concern I have, you know, like

         18  in East New York, sometimes if you go for insurance,

         19  they'll say, oh, high crime rate area, even though

         20  auto theft is down, accidents down, high crime rate

         21  area, and that's like a little signal for insurance

         22  to go very high, and they even have difficulty even

         23  getting insurance and then the fraud just adds more

         24  to it.

         25                 So, I just wanted to keep that in
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          2  mind because there's more that we have to do with

          3  this. I think the fraud does aggravate it, but there

          4  are some fundamental things that occur outside of

          5  the fraud that's creating a problem in low-income

          6  communities of color in addition to that.

          7                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: I would

          8  like nothing more, Council member, than to see the

          9  insurance companies in New York State aggressively

         10  compete for the business of Brooklyn motorists. I

         11  would love to see that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes.

         13                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: Because

         14  I think through competition, healthy, strong

         15  competition is how rates are driven down. But sadly,

         16  I don't really think we have that competitive

         17  situation in Brooklyn yet. I hope in the days to

         18  come we will, but one way we can do it is by

         19  assisting everyone involved to get rid of the fraud.

         20                 We've got to get rid of these,

         21  frankly, those who are ripping off all of us,

         22  because they're stealing. That's actually what

         23  they're doing. And we're paying for it, and that's

         24  got to come to a stop.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, you know
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          2  I'm one of the co-sponsors of the bill and I think

          3  it's right on time, moving in the right direction,

          4  but we even have to get deeper into this insurance

          5  issue here in Brooklyn.

          6                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: Thank

          7  you, Councilman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

          9  Stewart.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         11  Madam Chair.

         12                 Mr. Borough President you know, I've

         13  been listening to both sides of this argument, and

         14  I'm trying to figure out, how would the City be able

         15  to control the fraudulent billing with the

         16  providers, seeing that the information goes to the

         17  insurance companies that really are regulated by the

         18  State or federal government, how do we really

         19  control that?

         20                 And the other thing that brings up,

         21  that causes the rise in the costs is the false

         22  claims that are being filed by individuals. I can

         23  remember an incident that I witnessed where there

         24  was an accident and someone was standing about ten

         25  or 15 feet away from me, when they threw themself
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          2  down before the ambulance came, and was taken up by

          3  the ambulance as if he was part of the accident, and

          4  that in itself is a false thing.

          5                 So, I'm saying, how would the City

          6  itself, would the Consumer Affairs or the Health

          7  Department, how would they regulate this? How would

          8  they be able to control that? Or even the staged

          9  accidents? How would they be able to do that?

         10                 We know what the problem is, but I'm

         11  not too sure that we in the City have the mechanism

         12  to really control or to deal with that.

         13                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: You

         14  don't have the mechanism perhaps to control it. And

         15  to stop somebody who sees an opportunity and jumps

         16  in front of a car to stage an accident, and if that

         17  individual is in business for themselves, you got

         18  mashooginism every walk of life, okay?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

         20                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: But let

         21  me talk about why I think this legislation is a good

         22  piece of legislation.

         23                 Where the City comes in is that the

         24  light, it's called sunlight, you're putting the

         25  light on those medical mills that are involved in
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          2  the greatest number of no-fault insurance claims.

          3  That's what you're doing. And sometimes, you know,

          4  it's sort of like, I hate to say this but they're

          5  comparable to roaches, and that is, if you put the

          6  light on roaches, what do they do? They scurry. And

          7  that's the same way that these medical fraud people

          8  are. They're roaches. They are. I hate to say it,

          9  but they are.

         10                 And by putting the light on and

         11  shining attention on them and exposing them and

         12  getting more attention for the thefts that they are

         13  committing, it does, I think opens up to

         14  prosecutorial agencies, those that can prosecute,

         15  the possibility of taking action. Whether that's the

         16  District Attorney in my county, our county, or

         17  whether it's the State Attorney General, whoever it

         18  may be that has that power. So, that's what it does,

         19  it's good. Because it exposes them. And it makes

         20  them think, you know what? I don't want to be

         21  exposed. And right now they're not being exposed,

         22  and that's what we need to do. That in my opinion,

         23  we have to expose them, Councilman. We really do.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very
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          2  much. I don't think we have any other questions. Oh,

          3  actually that's a total lie. I have a question,

          4  which just came from me as a piece of paper by Ann

          5  Thomas.

          6                 Mr. Borough President, how prevalent

          7  do you think the medical mills are, meaning those

          8  medical facilities that are primarily established to

          9  defraud no-fault insurance in your borough? And have

         10  the recent changes in State law reduced, in your

         11  opinion, the number of these, quote/unquote medical

         12  mills?

         13                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT MARKOWITZ: Well,

         14  number one, I think one result of this legislation,

         15  I think if we'd have an idea of how many we're

         16  dealing with would be helpful.

         17                 The other thing is, we've seen a

         18  growth of these medical health clinics, whatever you

         19  want to call them, in fact, a significant growth in

         20  Brooklyn of these medical centers. I've got to tell

         21  you something, I don't think Brooklynites are

         22  sicker. They're not sicker. It's not as if suddenly

         23  we're in poorer health. The truth of the matter is

         24  that these medical clinics are growing, meeting the

         25  need that they're creating, in my opinion. And so
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          2  one result of this legislation, in my opinion, would

          3  be to get a handle on how many of these clinics are

          4  we dealing with, these centers, that are actively

          5  involved in this type of business, who are a

          6  significant part of the money that insurance

          7  companies are paying out.

          8                 I think it's important and it's

          9  something that the insurance companies should be the

         10  most aggressive about. They have the best computer

         11  system of anyone. Far better than government. And

         12  yet, I don't see any action yet. So, it's going to

         13  have to be prompted by City government.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 Next we're going to call up Ann

         17  Seely, the Executive District Attorney for Kings

         18  County, and Gavin Miles, also from the Kings County

         19  District Attorney's Office.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

         22  SEELY: Good afternoon. I'm Anne Seely. I'm an

         23  Executive Assistant District Attorney in the Rackets

         24  Division of the Kings County DA's Office. And --

         25                 MR. MILES: I'm Gavin Miles. I'm
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          2  Bureau Chief in the Rackets Division.

          3                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

          4  SEELY: The Rackets Division is one of the many

          5  divisions of the Kings County DA's Office, and it's

          6  the division that does, among other things, all

          7  investigation and prosecution of fraud cases, and

          8  that would include major frauds involving insurance.

          9                 Both of us have done these type of

         10  cases for many years, and we see on the street level

         11  the effects and the activity of those who are

         12  engaging in insurance fraud.

         13                 Based on our experience in law

         14  enforcement, we agree with the findings of, the

         15  legislature findings that insurance fraud is a major

         16  problem in the City and in Kings County, and we

         17  applaud the efforts of the Council to come up with

         18  legislation to help us to combat that problem.

         19                 We're limited by the laws and the

         20  regulations that we have the authority to enforce.

         21                 And what I'd like to say is just to

         22  go through a couple of the points on the legislation

         23  that I think are helpful but perhaps could be more

         24  helpful.

         25                 The first thing is a central
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          2  database. A central database, whether it's founded

          3  or kept by the Department of Health and Mental

          4  Hygiene, or by another entity, would be very helpful

          5  to law enforcement.

          6                 Because one of the major ways we

          7  investigate and make the bigger cases is through

          8  looking at patterns of fraud.

          9                 And as of now, though we can get

         10  information from insurance companies, it's

         11  piecemeal. There was one location where there was a

         12  central database that had all the names of the

         13  clinics, it's far, and as well as a number of

         14  accidents, that would be great, but it would be even

         15  better if more information was included in a

         16  computerized system. Again, you would have to have

         17  consideration for privilege and since we're dealing

         18  with the medical facilities, but if we could have

         19  names of claimants, as well as license plates and

         20  other information regarding each accident, because

         21  what you see is the same automobile may pop up in

         22  five different accidents, you may see the same names

         23  popping up.

         24                 And another piece of the legislation,

         25  which is helpful but could go a little further is
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          2  the identification of the people who are involved in

          3  the running of these clinics.

          4                 You have management companies

          5  mentioned I notice in the application. That's very

          6  important, because what we've been discovering is

          7  you will have a lot of clinics that actually in no

          8  way seem related, but when you look at them closely,

          9  we have to find this out through a lot of

         10  investigative technique, subpoenaing records, doing

         11  interviews, trying to get people to cooperate, but

         12  if there was a central database that identified who

         13  the management company was, we're able to get right

         14  to the people who are probably responsible.

         15                 There's two different levels. You

         16  have the lower level people, who are the runners,

         17  and the people who are being recruited to the

         18  accidents, and then you have the people who are

         19  really making the big bucks, and those are the names

         20  behind. Usually not the doctors, though they have

         21  involvement, but you have the owners of the

         22  management companies and the owners of the clinics.

         23  So, by putting more requirements on them, it may, I

         24  think as Mr. Markowitz said, may bring out, bring

         25  more light on the subject, which is always good.
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          2                 We found that the no-fault clinics in

          3  Brooklyn seem to be very responsive to law

          4  enforcement. So, whatever we do, they come back and

          5  they respond to what we're doing. So, we attack in

          6  one way, they adapt and change what they're doing in

          7  order to avoid the techniques that we've developed.

          8                 I'd say a long time ago people who

          9  were recruited wouldn't even have to go to the

         10  clinics. They would just get paid maybe $500 to have

         11  their name used and they didn't even have to go. But

         12  once we started looking at it in more detail and

         13  they knew we were sending undercovers in, they

         14  changed that. Now you have to go. You don't get

         15  treated, but you have to go.

         16                 So, like I said, the central database

         17  would be very good.  Now, to the anti-runner aspect

         18  of the bill. That I think is a good concept in that

         19  you're getting it at the ground level. If you can't

         20  recruit people, then you're not going to have the

         21  people who you need to putting the claims on. But I

         22  think that's really already against the law because

         23  of the way it's phrased.

         24                 If you get somebody and you know it's

         25  for insurance fraud, you're getting at least
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          2  conspiracy and probably committing insurance fraud

          3  as well. Now, I don't know, there may be

          4  implications to this and things that need to be

          5  considered, but a complete and clear, just

          6  anti-runner law, it's against the rule to recruit. I

          7  mean, that would really cut off a lot of the

          8  criminal activity. But there may be implications of

          9  it beyond.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Well, I'm sure the

         11  author of the bill would want to take a look at

         12  that.

         13                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

         14  SEELY: Yes, whether that's a doable thing. I think

         15  having the separate law the way you have it probably

         16  is helpful, but I think that we can already

         17  prosecute people who we find to be recruiting people

         18  for the purposes of insurance fraud.

         19                 So, we are supportive of the bill

         20  with the modifications that I mentioned. And

         21  obviously from what other people said, there is

         22  other considerations as to who is going to do what,

         23  but a central database should be very helpful our

         24  law enforcement efforts in Brooklyn.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: If I might, I'm
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          2  just going to make one suggestion on behalf of the

          3  author. Inasmuch as you are District Attorneys, so

          4  you know a little bit about this part of the law, it

          5  wouldn't hurt the effort if you have any specific

          6  language that you think would be most useful in the

          7  areas you suggested, to forward those to the author

          8  and the Council, I think we would find that useful

          9  to review.

         10                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

         11  SEELY: Okay, we can do that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Does your

         13  colleague have additional testimony?

         14                 Just identify yourself.

         15                 MR. MILES: I'm Gavin Miles, Brooklyn

         16  DA's Office. Anne and I have been doing these cases

         17  for about 12 years and some big cases and a lot of

         18  little cases and we do really applaud Mr. Yassky and

         19  the Council's effort in providing a tool for us,

         20  another tool so that we can together move forward on

         21  this significant issue.

         22                 But the good thing about this bill is

         23  that it's got, I mean it's got several components,

         24  each of which independently help the process. It has

         25  the reporting requirements, it has the anti-runner
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          2  law, it has the licensing provisions, and I know we

          3  heard some objections or some opposition to the

          4  possible burdens required by the reporting mandate,

          5  but aside from that, I mean as Anne said, focusing

          6  on the runner provision, which is an excellent one,

          7  if you make a per se bar for referral fees from and

          8  to runners, you are really severing an important

          9  link in this cycle, and absent that, if it's legal

         10  to give referral fees, the only way to prove fraud,

         11  there are several ways to do it, but it's very

         12  difficult and very laborious and requires a variety

         13  of labor-intensive investigative techniques that I

         14  don't want to go into right now, but that per se

         15  rule would simply snip, is my hope, that link, in

         16  that engine of fraud, and I think it's an excellent

         17  provision.

         18                 Also, the licensing provision where

         19  you have -- you could simplify the licensing

         20  provision. Yes, under Section 20-541 license

         21  required, sub b, you could simply say that no person

         22  shall maintain or operate a clinic, a no-fault

         23  clinic if they have previously been convicted of

         24  insurance fraud within the past X years, or whether

         25  they're corporation has previously been convicted of
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          2  a crime.

          3                 So, you know, once again, I want to

          4  say, the Kings County DA's Office, we strongly do

          5  support the Council's great efforts in addressing

          6  this issue.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you.

          8                 Council Member Stewart.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I would like

         10  to get an explanation as far as the anti-runner

         11  portion of the bill is concerned.

         12                 How do you compare that to someone

         13  who is an attorney that has someone who is in the

         14  hospital to really catch the accidents, or the folks

         15  who were there they want to represent?

         16                 And a lot of the high-powered

         17  attorneys, some of them have runners at hospitals.

         18  So, how do you compare that? How do you

         19  differentiate what you are saying, and how do we put

         20  that into the bill?

         21                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

         22  SEELY: In terms of the hospitals, oft times when

         23  people go to the hospitals it's not readily apparent

         24  who is there for what, and we've had cases where

         25  runners at hospitals have been bribing and getting
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          2  information from people in an unlawful fashion, and

          3  because of that we've fought those type of cases as

          4  well.

          5                 But I'm not sure how somebody can

          6  hang out at the hospital and just get information.

          7  So, I'm not familiar with that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, there

          9  are people who hang out at emergency rooms, areas,

         10  and they represent or they're working for some

         11  high-powered attorney, to get the information. They

         12  work as runners. So, I'm saying it's the same kind

         13  of activities that they will be doing for some

         14  medical clinic who are dealing with insurance, who

         15  are dealing with this no-fault insurance.

         16                 MR. MILES: I think your question is

         17  an excellent one. But I think you're talking about

         18  conduct which is overlapping but not the same.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Exactly.

         20                 MR. MILES: Because, for example, some

         21  of the runners we have seen, yes, we've seen the

         22  cases where they hang out at hospitals or they pay

         23  for emergency room information from the paperwork.

         24  But there are two differences, one is that the

         25  runners that we have seen, in terms of no-fault
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          2  clinics, will get paid by the no-fault clinic owner.

          3                 If we can stop that, then maybe their

          4  activity will stop, or maybe they'll adapt and do it

          5  through a lawyer, I don't know. But it's a good

          6  start.

          7                 And the second major difference is

          8  that the runners that we've been looking at are not

          9  going to ERs. They are signing up, you know, MCI's

         10  friends and family. They find groups of people and

         11  they persuade them to go in on this venture. They

         12  take the people's pedigree. They provide the

         13  information to accidents, dates of accidents and

         14  what the barest details are, and then direct these

         15  people to go to a clinic and report their injuries.

         16                 So, you're right, there are

         17  circumstances that this bill wouldn't address, in

         18  terms of concerns that you have at the hospitals,

         19  between the hospitals and attorneys. But this bill I

         20  think would address or tries to address runners not

         21  going to hospitals who do provide a large volume of

         22  fraudulent patients, and those runners directly

         23  dealing with clinics.

         24                 I'm not too sure the explanation is

         25  clear. You see, sometimes someone may get in an
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          2  accident and the accident may be a minor accident,

          3  so minor there is no medical injuries, but that

          4  runner, or whoever, saw the accident, he's recouping

          5  for not only the clinic or maybe for an attorney.

          6  So, I'm saying there are those who recruit for the

          7  attorney, and there are those who recruit for the

          8  clinic, which then now becomes, in one sense, fraud

          9  because there is no real injury and you're treating

         10  someone for something that they didn't have. They

         11  didn't get. There's no injury, they're getting

         12  treatment for that in a sense.

         13                 MR. MILES: Right.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And so the

         15  institution is going to get paid for that. So,

         16  that's where the fraud is, as I see it.

         17                 The same thing can happen with that

         18  runner doing the work for the attorney.

         19                 So, I'm saying how do you

         20  differentiate runners? You have anti-runner, and I'm

         21  not too sure I understand that part of the bill, so

         22  I wanted to see if there is any merit, if you can

         23  really separate both?

         24                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

         25  SEELY: Well, let us think about that. I think that's
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          2  an important issue, and you know want to sweep up

          3  somebody who may be doing an honest day's work.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Exactly.

          5                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

          6  SEELY: And on the other hand, you do want to address

          7  the people who are creating paper accidents and

          8  inducing other people to come to clinics when

          9  there's been no accident whatsoever.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

         11                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

         12  SEELY: So there has to be a way to differentiate

         13  between the two and to give law enforcement more

         14  tools in order to address those, while still carving

         15  out those others.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Thank you,

         18  Council member.

         19                 Just for clarification, the bill does

         20  have an intent requirement. It requires that the

         21  solicitation must be for the purpose of promoting

         22  fraud.

         23                 So, in other words, this would only

         24  cover someone who is, say, proposing come in for 100

         25  bucks, you get a hundred bucks to go to two sessions
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          2  of physical therapy, that you don't really need. You

          3  know, well, why do I need it? Well, why do you need

          4  it? Because here's a hundred bucks, and then you can

          5  get $6,000 reimbursement for it.

          6                 So, the language, and I would

          7  certainly welcome any proposed changes, the language

          8  does specifically require there be an intention of

          9  fraud.

         10                 Just to clarify, you said that it's

         11  covered, as I understand it, the State, you know,

         12  there's general conspiracy, of course, theory, while

         13  there is a specific anti-runner legislation pending

         14  in the legislature, it hasn't been enacted yet, so

         15  this would be the first in New York, as I understand

         16  it.

         17                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

         18  SEELY: Yes. This was specifically addressed, the

         19  runner issue.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: That's

         21  right.

         22                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

         23  SEELY: As opposed to trying to prosecute runners

         24  under other crimes that are still available.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: That's
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          2  right. Just a couple of quick questions.

          3                 Do you know, I mean have hospitals,

          4  do you know if New York City hospitals make efforts

          5  to prevent, quote, runners?

          6                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

          7  SEELY: I can't speak to --

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: I know the

          9  Administration representatives are not on the panel

         10  any longer, but since you're in the room, I ask you

         11  as part of the follow up to get back, whether you

         12  know of any efforts or any general protocols.

         13                 And one thing that I'm going to

         14  propose that we add to the bill is that at least for

         15  the City hospitals, HHC hospitals, and maybe even

         16  for the private ones as well, that they have to come

         17  with some protocols to discourage runner activity.

         18  And I'd be curious to hear the Administration's

         19  thoughts on that.

         20                 Just for the DA folks, can you tell

         21  me how many, roughly, you know, in the last year or

         22  two years, referrals from insurance companies you've

         23  gotten, you know, suspected fraud?

         24                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

         25  SEELY: I would have to get back to you with that
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          2  number.

          3                 We get referrals from New York State

          4  Department of Insurance, as well, and we get them

          5  from the SIUs and insurance companies.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Just ball

          7  park, would it be ten, 50, 100?

          8                 MR. MILES: I don't know, but I would

          9  say over the years it would be in the hundreds, but

         10  they don't refer everything to us. They don't refer

         11  all suspected because our standards are high. Well,

         12  our standards of conduct are high, but the law

         13  obviously provides a higher burden for proof --

         14                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Okay, I

         15  understand.

         16                 MR. MILES: Kind of a self-screening

         17  process by the insurance companies. I mean, there's

         18  obviously, I don't know about the number of claims

         19  but there is obviously anecdotally millions of

         20  dollars.

         21                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

         22  SEELY: We self-initiate cases also, through

         23  informants and other things, so we're not relying

         24  only on insurance companies in those cases.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Well, I'm
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          2  curious, and, again, I'm not going to ask you to

          3  exhaustively go back, but whatever the offices,

          4  whoever in the office would know, presumably

          5  somebody, I would have thought it would be you, but

          6  if not you, who would know what is the ball park, if

          7  it's ten, 20, 100 referrals in a year? I'm just

          8  curious.

          9                 And then just the number convictions

         10  that you're able to obtain, do you have a sense of

         11  that?

         12                 EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT DISTRICT ATTORNEY

         13  SEELY: Let us get you the statistics on that. We've

         14  had some good success in insurance fraud over the

         15  last few years and hope to continue to do so.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Yes,

         17  absolutely. Thank you for that.

         18                 Anything further? Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 And I know we are now going to hear

         21  from Gary Henning and Floyd Holloway. And Raymond

         22  Zuppa, all of whom are associated in one way or

         23  another with insurance companies as a group.

         24                 And why don't you just go ahead left

         25  to right, unless you have some other order you'd
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          2  prefer.

          3                 MR. HENNING: Yes, why don't --

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Whatever

          5  order you prefer, please.

          6                 MR. HENNING: My name is Gary Henning.

          7  I'm the Assistant Vice President of the Northeast

          8  Region of the American Insurance Association. AIA is

          9  the trade association of more than 400 property

         10  casualty insurers that write approximately 20

         11  percent all automobile insurance premiums in New

         12  York State.

         13                 AIA thanks the Council for the

         14  opportunity to provide our views on Intro. 708.

         15                 I have lengthy written testimony.

         16  What I thought I would do is just --

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Yes,

         18  without objection the written testimony for all the

         19  witnesses will be put in the record, and please why

         20  don't you just give a brief summary, highlights.

         21                 MR. HENNING: I'll give the

         22  highlights. Okay.

         23                 I just want to touch briefly on what

         24  no-fault insurance is, because there seems to be

         25  some confusion in the discussion here on when you
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          2  start talking about insurance premiums and the high

          3  cost of insurance and fraud is going down. I think

          4  you have to realize that no-fault is only a

          5  component of auto insurance premiums. The other, the

          6  much larger component is liability insurance. So,

          7  while claim costs for no-fault may be going down, I

          8  don't have the data on the liability, but, you know,

          9  if that's not going down, that's a larger portion of

         10  the insurance premium that the no-fault is, so

         11  that's a factor in why the premiums don't track

         12  no-fault fraud reductions throughout.

         13                 Let me see. No fault, quickly on no

         14  fault, $50,000, it's $50,000 in benefits to each

         15  person in a car that's in an accident. And it's

         16  $50,000 in benefits, fee for service delivered in a

         17  non-managed care setting.

         18                 So, this is one of the last

         19  non-managed care settings in the country, I guess.

         20  So, it's particularly good target for fraud.

         21                 If you have an accident with five

         22  people in the car, that's $250,000, boom, right

         23  there.

         24                 And while it has been improving, as

         25  we've heard, as we've heard from the last panel, as
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          2  law enforcement has made this a higher priority, it

          3  wasn't always so. So, that's why you had the no

          4  fault, the medical mills starting and now it's

          5  become such a big problem, it is being taken more

          6  seriously by law enforcement.

          7                 I won't go into how a typical scam

          8  works because I think we've gone over that.

          9                 I'll touch on, we have seen a

         10  reduction in fraud. I think I just want to point to

         11  a few things that have led to this reduction in

         12  fraud and claim costs, and in the no-fault arena

         13  again, not talking at all about liability.

         14                 April 2003, amendments to regulation

         15  68 were effectuated. The insurance department, State

         16  Insurance Department regulation 68, and the two

         17  major changes were time frame changes, reporting

         18  time frame changes. The time frame in which an

         19  insured has to report maximum to the insurance

         20  company were shortened from 90 days to 30 days, and

         21  the time frame in which a medical provider has to

         22  submit a claim to the insurance company has been

         23  reduced from 180 days to 45 days.

         24                 These changes are important because,

         25  one, for the initial notification of a claim, this
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          2  allows carriers to detect patterns of fraudulent

          3  services more quickly and easily.

          4                 And in the shortened time frame in

          5  which a medical provider has to build the insurance

          6  carrier will prevent these medical mills from

          7  bundling 180 days, from bundling six months' worth

          8  of claims all it once and dumping it on the

          9  insurance, in the insurance carrier's lap.

         10                 This is key, because as a general

         11  rule there's some exceptions. You can ask for more

         12  time or more verification, but generally insurance

         13  carrier has 30 days in which to pay or deny a claim.

         14                 So, if you think about it, if you get

         15  six months' worth of bills from one medical mill,

         16  you know, that's a lot of claims to be looking at

         17  and try to figure out within 30 days what to do with

         18  them.

         19                 So, these shortened time frames

         20  allows the carriers to get a better handle on what's

         21  going on out there, where they have to focus their

         22  efforts and try to stop any fraudulent activity.

         23                 Another key amendment for us was the

         24  amendment for the insurance department regulation

         25  83. This was adopted in October 2004. It established
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          2  a fee schedule for health care services, and durable

          3  medical equipment.

          4                 This, the neck braces that you get,

          5  the carriers were being charged hundreds of dollars

          6  for that and this put an end to practices like that.

          7  And again, another fact that help reduce insurance

          8  fraud is increased efforts on the part of State and

          9  local law enforcement, but also the carriers have

         10  spent more money on this effort through their

         11  special investigative unit.

         12                 This is the department's, and Floyd

         13  with State Farm can probably talk more about company

         14  specific practice is, but the SIUs, you know, within

         15  the company, will look to root out fraud, and then

         16  work as the Kings County DA's office said, work with

         17  the DA's office and the State Insurance Department,

         18  coordinate with them to bring about prosecutions and

         19  convictions.

         20                 I bring all this up to say, you know,

         21  a lot has been done, but fraud is still a problem,

         22  obviously, in New York City.

         23                 That's why we strongly support your

         24  legislation.

         25                 Premiums in the City can be several
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          2  times higher than those for identical risks in other

          3  parts of the State. It's not just the no-fault

          4  portion, but that certainly does play a factor.

          5                 As Borough President Markowitz

          6  stated, 35-year-old married male in Brooklyn buying

          7  the minimum required insurance coverage would pay

          8  three to over four times more than he would in

          9  Albany or Rochester. Same person living in Manhattan

         10  would pay two to three times more than the Albany or

         11  Rochester counterparts.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Can I just

         13  ask you why -- can you break that down? Why is that?

         14                 MR. HENNING: Why would he pay more?

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: Yes. What

         16  are the components of that?

         17                 MR. HENNING: Again, if we're just

         18  talking on, not no fault, but insurance in general,

         19  I don't think it's a secret that New York City

         20  residents are more litigious, which would increase

         21  the litigation, the litigation costs. The medical

         22  costs in the City are higher than they are in other

         23  parts, but as I will argue, or I'll let you read the

         24  testimony, depending on how quickly you have to move

         25  on, I think the statistics show that there's more
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          2  fraud, there's more fraud, no-fault fraud in New

          3  York City which adds to that.

          4                 So, it's a little bit of everything.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON YASSKY: All right,

          6  I didn't mean to interrupt. Why don't you finish and

          7  then I'll ask my questions.

          8                 MR. HENNING: Okay.

          9                 Let me see. Okay, claim costs. Claim

         10  cost, which is dollar amount of average, an average

         11  no-fault claim, have been increasing in both the

         12  City and the State.

         13                 I have attached a chart from ISO, the

         14  Insurance Services Office on that. Again, it could

         15  be due to increased medical inflation, increased

         16  fraud; however, claim frequency, no-fault claims for

         17  100 insured vehicles is revealing. Claim frequency

         18  for both New York City and New York have been

         19  steadily decreasing for the past several years.

         20  While not shown on these charts, this trend

         21  continues today.

         22                 This is clear evidence that the

         23  fraud-fighting measures have been having a positive

         24  effect. However, the claim cost and claim frequency

         25  are almost twice as high for New York City as they
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          2  are for the rest of the state. This strongly

          3  suggests that more anti-fraud efforts in New York

          4  City would have a beneficial effect on the

          5  automobile insurance markets by taking costs out of

          6  the system here.

          7                 In my written testimony I've

          8  submitted some statistics and charts, comparisons

          9  from, with other cities. I used Miami, Detroit and

         10  Minneapolis because Florida, Michigan and Minnesota

         11  have no-fault systems that are the most similar to

         12  New York's.

         13                 While different costs for medical

         14  services from city to city make absolute dollar

         15  comparison of claims cost difficult, some relative

         16  comparisons are helpful.

         17                 Miami, which also has a no-fault

         18  problem, has an average claim cost roughly 40

         19  percent higher than the rest of Florida. Detroit's

         20  average claim cost is 35 percent higher than the

         21  rest of Michigan. Minneapolis has an average claim

         22  cost that is nearly identical to the rest of the

         23  State. New York City's average claim cost is 75

         24  percent higher than the rest of the State.

         25                 This would suggest to me there is
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          2  something with the fraud -- something to the fraud

          3  problem in New York City. And with claims frequency,

          4  again, accidents per no-fault claims, I should say,

          5  for every hundred insured vehicles, a comparison of

          6  absolute numbers makes more sense as we're looking

          7  at other cities with similar systems.

          8                 I won't bore you with the exact

          9  numbers, but New York City's and Miami's frequencies

         10  are similar, and they're similarly higher in

         11  relation to their respective states, similar

         12  proportions, but New York City's absolute number and

         13  relative number compared to the State is much higher

         14  than both Detroit and Minneapolis.

         15                 What all these statistics suggest,

         16  claim crossing in New York City relative to the rest

         17  of the State are much higher than those in other

         18  cities in comparison to their states.

         19                 This suggests that there are factors

         20  inflating paying costs in New York City higher than

         21  they ought to be.

         22                 Second, while claim frequency for New

         23  York City is comparable to Miami, a city with its

         24  own noteful problems, New York City's frequency is

         25  higher than the other cities examined here. Most
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          2  importantly, New York City's claim frequency is

          3  twice that of the rest of New York State.

          4                 The decreasing annual claim frequency

          5  for New York City also suggests that fraud fighting

          6  measures have been working here, so while the data

          7  does not prove New York City has a no-fault problem,

          8  still it strongly suggests this conclusion.

          9                 You also have the anecdotes. I've

         10  included, in the packet I've included stories from

         11  the publication, quarterly publication of the

         12  Coalition Against Insurance Fraud. It's a national

         13  organization of insurance companies and consumer

         14  groups dedicated to fighting fraud. You see the

         15  stories of how these criminal enterprises work.

         16                 You also have a story, a close to

         17  home, you may have heard of a woman, Alice Ross,

         18  March of 2003, 71-year-old Queens resident, was hit.

         19  She was the unwitting victim in a staged accident,

         20  hit, run off the road into a tree, killed instantly.

         21  I've seen reports in the media about turf wars,

         22  gunfight turf wars in Brooklyn as the criminal

         23  enterprises fight over which street corner they can

         24  stage their accidents.

         25                 So, I think you have both, there's
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          2  statistical and anecdotal evidence that suggests,

          3  while the situation is improving, no-fault fraud is

          4  still a factor in automobile insurance rates in New

          5  York City.

          6                 In listening to the Administration

          7  and some others, while there, you know, there may be

          8  some room to work on how things get reported, AIA

          9  views this legislation with its additional

         10  reporting, as another helpful tool in the fight

         11  against insurance fraud, because as the DA's office

         12  said, you know, you look for patterns. You want as

         13  much data as you can. A lot of the fraud fighting on

         14  the company's part is through the use of

         15  sophisticated computer programs, so you need data to

         16  see patterns that you would not otherwise see.

         17                 Some of it is just good old fashioned

         18  detective work. Having another government agency

         19  collect claims data will only benefit both types of

         20  anti-fraud efforts.

         21                 And we also like the increased

         22  criminal and civil penalties for being a runner. I

         23  think, as was mentioned, or alluded to, right now

         24  you have to use violation of insurance. This would

         25  make it specific in the law that you can't be a
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          2  runner, rather than arresting them, prosecuting them

          3  in a more circuitous manner.

          4                 We like felonies for these crimes. We

          5  think it's more appropriate to get the runners to

          6  flip and turn state's evidence on the clinic owners.

          7  We appreciate any additional, or increased penalties

          8  in this area. And with that, I will end it and take

          9  any questions, or we can wait til everyone is done.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Go right ahead.

         11                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Good afternoon, Madam

         12  Chairperson, and distinguished Council members. My

         13  name is Floyd Holloway. I'm Counsel, State Farm

         14  Insurance Companies. I brought with me Mark Butler

         15  who is a team manager in our SIU operation.

         16                 What I'd like to do this afternoon is

         17  just share a little slightly different perspective

         18  with you about this company's experience, and I'd

         19  like to challenge some of the views that were

         20  presented to you earlier about what at least one

         21  company, and I know some of my colleagues in the

         22  industry are doing, to deal with the fraud challenge

         23  in New York State.

         24                 State Farm is the largest personal

         25  lines insurer in the United States and Canada. The
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          2  companies insure approximately 21.3 million

          3  households in the United States, representing more

          4  than 40 million autos, excluding residual markets.

          5                 State Farm's marketshare in the US is

          6  approximately 19 percent.

          7                 In New York, the number of auto

          8  policies written by State Farm in the voluntary

          9  market is approximately 1.17 million. This is an

         10  estimated 11.6 percent of the automarket

         11  representing nearly 700,000 households. State Farm

         12  is the third largest autowriter in New York State.

         13                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         14  speak to you on the topic of auto insurance fraud,

         15  and I'd like to delve into specifically some of

         16  State Farm's background surrounding its involvement

         17  in insurance fraud investigation.

         18                 State Farm appreciates Council Member

         19  Yassky's leadership and interest in the topic, as

         20  well as the City Council's interest, leadership and

         21  support. There is no single silver bullet solution,

         22  however, from our perspective that would address New

         23  York's auto insurance challenges.

         24                 The collaborative efforts of state

         25  and local leaders, regulatory agencies, law
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          2  enforcement, the insurance industry and consumers

          3  will provide our best opportunity to defend against

          4  these challenges and to devise offensive strategies

          5  that will help promote stability and affordability

          6  in New York's auto insurance market.

          7                 Let me begin by saying that for the

          8  past decade, State Farm has been an active

          9  participant in the dialogue and fight against

         10  insurance fraud. State Farm was one of the first

         11  insurers to establish its own internal anti-fraud

         12  program, including the formation of a special

         13  investigative unit.

         14                 The company has, and continues to

         15  work closely with State and local officials and law

         16  enforcement to encourage their efforts and to help

         17  find solutions to the challenge of insurance fraud.

         18                 State Farm was an early member of the

         19  NICB, and maintains a leadership position in that

         20  organization. We also helped form the Coalition

         21  against insurance fraud on a national basis.

         22                 Fraud is a serious problem in New

         23  York State, as it is in most states, but it's

         24  particularly interesting to us in New York, inasmuch

         25  as it's one of our most challenging states.
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          2                 In 2002, the NICB estimated that as

          3  an industry, no-fault fraud in New York cost

          4  consumers and companies approximately $432 million.

          5  That's a million-two per day. It would be difficult

          6  at best to ascertain the cost of insurance fraud for

          7  State Farm customers, however, I can tell you that

          8  in 2001, ten percent of this company's losses arose

          9  out of our New York operations, and that's in

         10  comparison to three percent of policies that we

         11  write nationally being housed in New York.

         12                 These losses in part were

         13  attributable to rampant fraud and abuse that plagues

         14  the New York auto insurance system.

         15                 The deterioration of the auto

         16  insurance market in New York State between 2000 and

         17  2003, a byproduct of fraud and abuse, continues to

         18  impose hefty burdens on consumers who can ill afford

         19  to be without coverage for legal and other reasons,

         20  but are left with few alternatives when faced with

         21  the choice between this and life's basic

         22  necessities.

         23                 By way of example, our experience

         24  tells us that, or told us, that in 2003, a youthful

         25  male driver in Brooklyn, under age 25, seeking
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          2  minimum required coverages for a 2001 Honda Accord,

          3  could pay as much as $13,800 a year. In Oyster Bay

          4  it was $6,700. Compare these figures to the City of

          5  Philadelphia, where at that time the cost of similar

          6  coverages was approximately $2,700 annually.

          7                 Indeed we've come a long way today.

          8  The costs have migrated downward, in part due to

          9  changes in pertinent no-fault regulations, modest

         10  statutory changes and insurers' enhanced and

         11  sustained fraud-fighting efforts.

         12                 The fact remains, however, that the

         13  problem with fraud in New York is systemic, and

         14  unless and until we confront this problem head on by

         15  updating or repealing the very system of laws that

         16  give rise to opportunity and create the very

         17  circumstances upon which the public's trust and

         18  confidence can be readily and repeatedly breached,

         19  those who are inclined to take advantage of the

         20  no-fault system will continue to do so.

         21                 Moreover, they will engage in levels

         22  of social engineering that appear otherwise lawful

         23  but are intended to chip away at this weakened and

         24  over-taxed infrastructure.

         25                 According to the iii, fraud costs
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          2  consumers approximately $29 billion per year. The

          3  industry estimates, the insurance industry estimates

          4  a ten to 30 percent of its premiums go to paying for

          5  fraud. NICB has suggested that insurance fraud and

          6  vehicle theft, if it were a stock company, would

          7  rank in the top 50 of the Fortune 500 list.

          8                 So, what's the scope o the problem

          9  from State Farm's perspective? First, second and

         10  third tier runners and the formation of

         11  multi-tiered, multi-staffed medical mills

         12  characterized the initial explosive wave of auto

         13  insurance fraud that seized the New York no-fault

         14  system. And predominant in the underlying scheme,

         15  these forces have adapted to the changing economic

         16  and policy environment to evolve into something

         17  greater, more sophisticated, and more challenging to

         18  both human and economic resources.

         19                 State Farm's SIU reports that

         20  previously traceable medical mills revolved into

         21  complex corporate structures that are dedicated to

         22  hiding resources, disguising ownership and

         23  dissolving at will to avoid prosecution.

         24                 These services are characterized by

         25  over-billing for services under a designated
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          2  specialty, billing for services not medically

          3  necessary, billing for services not rendered,

          4  establishing schemes of concurrent care, unbundling

          5  bills to impose obstacles to denial or to impede

          6  investigation, and improper referrals.

          7                 The manners in which these services

          8  are offered leave little room for doubt as to the

          9  intent of those under whose control these entities

         10  are placed.

         11                 We continue to see what I will refer

         12  to as a morphing of providers. Owners and managers

         13  of medical mills have become quite innovative in

         14  their task to defraud.

         15                 In past years, one facility, along

         16  with its affiliated members, would teach eligible

         17  injured parties -- would treat them rather until it

         18  maximized no-fault benefit recovery. Today, knowing

         19  that the insurers' resources and protocols in place

         20  looked more closely at these issues, they seek to

         21  fly under the radar screen by sharing patients, and

         22  that's a new term of art in medical mills, sharing

         23  patients, in ways that allow each facility to bill

         24  in smaller amounts.

         25                 Equally alarming are the clinics that
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          2  now sell patients as well. Our investigators have

          3  learned that some clinics, in an effort to avoid

          4  being investigated, simply bill enough to cover

          5  their expenses, and then sell their alleged interest

          6  in patients to another clinic that adopts a similar

          7  scheme.

          8                 The initial clinic typically draws

          9  five to 1,500 for eligible parties. Similarly, in

         10  some cases we have learned that multi-facilities

         11  that were actually owned by a single individual are

         12  now splitting their books in ways that allow them to

         13  be somewhat untraceable, but we have discovered that

         14  the dollars end up in one hand or back in a single

         15  pocket.

         16                 This is all to say that the level of

         17  sophistication and the so-called creativity and the

         18  accompanying defeat does not necessarily start and

         19  stop with the providers, but also expands beyond

         20  what we refer to as a new breed of fraud, cropping

         21  up in the bodily injury arena.

         22                 Pedestrian and cyclist knockdowns.

         23  These schemes involve contact with a slow-moving or

         24  stopped vehicle, the alleged injured party initiates

         25  slamming their hands, if you will, on the hood or
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          2  any other part of the vehicle or riding a bicycle

          3  into the side of the car. The mere abruptness of the

          4  contact absent a witness, we have found makes these

          5  cases very difficult to defend against or to deny,

          6  and we're seeing a rise in those kinds of cases.

          7                 Similarly, as I think you heard

          8  earlier today, rate jumping activity is on the rise

          9  in New York, and that is a crime.

         10                 State Farm's New York SIU is seeing

         11  an increasing number of files from North Carolina,

         12  South Carolina, Pennsylvania, Virginia and Michigan,

         13  which is unlimited PIP. With the number of medical

         14  mills and clinics approaching or at $500 -- or 500

         15  rather, between the Boroughs and Long Island, the

         16  challenges they present to the no-fault system will

         17  only grow worse if we allow them to remain

         18  unregulated or unchecked.

         19                 This becomes even more evident with

         20  the following additional emerging trends:

         21                 - Transient services. More and more

         22  doctors such as orthopedists, neurologists and

         23  psychiatrists are treating out of other medical

         24  offices. For example, chiropractic offices.

         25                 - Technicians and physician
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          2  assistants are rendering treatment with little or no

          3  supervision, as would be required by law.

          4                 - There are misleading billing

          5  schemes and practices.

          6                 - the staged losses that we used to

          7  see which involved four or five people now only

          8  involve two people, typically elderly individuals

          9  and children.

         10                 - There are fraudulent billing for

         11  services that are simply not provided. And the new

         12  service that we're recognizing or seeing come to

         13  light at the acupuncturist office is the e-stim,

         14  electronic stimulation. We've discovered that at

         15  least in one case that the tools or the resource

         16  that are required for each stimulation weren't even

         17  present in a particular acupuncturist's office that

         18  we had investigated.

         19                 State Farm's response and experience

         20  to this has been two-fold:

         21                 On the one hand, State Farm has made

         22  the largest commitment to developing it's SIU in the

         23  State of New York. We have 158 personnel dedicated

         24  to fraud investigation, this operation is only

         25  second to our California operation, which currently
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          2  has 169 SIU employees.

          3                 In 2001, the Insurance Frauds Bureau

          4  referred a total of 15,500 roughly cases, or

          5  received 15,500 cases.  In 2002, that number climbed

          6  to 24,500 as compared to what they saw in 1996,

          7  which was simply 5,200 cases.

          8                 Based on State Farm's annual fraud

          9  figures for the past three years, 80 percent of the

         10  total referrals to the New York IFB have arisen out

         11  of Metro New York.

         12                 More significantly, these referrals

         13  contain a large percentage of activity involving

         14  staged or caused losses or organized ring activity.

         15                 Just by way of example, in 2002,

         16  State Farm referred 2,909 cases to the IFB. In 2003

         17  we referred 5,113. In 2004, last year, we referred

         18  7,269.

         19                 That attests to the fact that this

         20  company is doing something about fraud. We're

         21  investigating it and referring it. But truth be

         22  told, we need additional resources, additional

         23  tools, as my colleague points out. And we believe

         24  that this effort represents a positive step in the

         25  right direction with respect to putting those tools
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          2  on the table.

          3                 Let me just share with you a couple

          4  of compelling stories that I think are noteworthy,

          5  just to paint a different picture of how serious the

          6  problem of fraud really is in New York.

          7                 This was an investigation into a

          8  transient psychological provider's operation in New

          9  York, which revealed to us upon conclusion that the

         10  owner was an 81-year-old psychiatrist living in New

         11  Jersey, all treatment was being rendered in

         12  Brooklyn, the Bronx and Queens. The doctor came in

         13  and cooperated with State Farm in the form of an

         14  EUO. We learned that he was approached by the clinic

         15  owner to work for him, but never saw any patients.

         16                 Moreover, with respect to those who

         17  did render psychological treatment, they were

         18  unlicensed social workers. He didn't oversee any of

         19  their activity, didn't perform any degree or scope

         20  of supervision, nor was he aware that he was the

         21  owner of the clinic until an investigator brought

         22  that to his attention.

         23                 He was paid $20 per report, signed

         24  reports, and he would come to the billing office

         25  once a week to sign those reports.
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          2                 In another instance, an investigation

          3  into a transient neurological provider revealed that

          4  the owner was a 77-year-old man living in

          5  Connecticut. The interesting fact about this

          6  particular physician was that he resides in a

          7  nursing home, and he also has failing mental health

          8  and physical health.

          9                 He's resided there since 2002, yet

         10  State Farm received bills for services rendered

         11  after his admission to the nursing home.

         12                 More significantly, the doctor

         13  doesn't have a valid New York State medical license,

         14  and hasn't resided in New York since 2000.

         15                 And the last example I was to share

         16  with you is of a woman who was employed by one of

         17  these medical mills. I guess her conscience got the

         18  better of her when she came to us and volunteered

         19  information.

         20                 She said that the facility that she

         21  worked for was operating with the intent to defraud

         22  insurance companies. She indicated that there were

         23  about ten to six individuals whose jobs were to

         24  recruit injured parties and to treat at the

         25  facility. These individuals would coordinate staged
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          2  losses and contact folks directly at the scene of

          3  these losses to get them to come into the provider's

          4  operation.

          5                 They were paid every Friday a

          6  referral fee of $1,500 per referral.

          7                 She indicated that the owning

          8  physician showed up two days a week, Mondays and

          9  Wednesdays, to perform initial evaluations, but that

         10  all the other services that he allegedly performed

         11  didn't take place, but were certainly billed for by

         12  that particular provider.

         13                 When we sought her out to testify, lo

         14  and behold she disappeared. Her phone was

         15  disconnected, subsequent efforts to contact her

         16  weren't successful, the NICB sent a field

         17  investigator out to her home to see if he could

         18  recover some additional details and she was nowhere

         19  to be found. So we don't know what happened to that

         20  particular individual.

         21                 If we are to achieve success in

         22  breaking the cycle of fraud that pervades the New

         23  York's no-fault system, we must act to create and

         24  implement a set of rules that sends a clear message

         25  to those who would otherwise see it fit to treat the
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          2  State's insurance, auto insurance reparation system,

          3  as a guaranteed $50,000 annuity.

          4                 With respect to the proposed

          5  solutions in Intro. No. 708, I commend you,

          6  Councilman Yassky, and other distinguished members

          7  of the City Council, for demonstrating leadership

          8  and courage in your efforts to address what State

          9  Farm believes is a systemic problem and one which

         10  for the moment is endemic to the five boroughs in

         11  Long Island.

         12                 The proposed local law represents the

         13  first viable step in an effort to get at the root

         14  causes of fraud in the auto insurance system,

         15  understanding the method of acquisition, the plan of

         16  ownership, the span of control are crucial to

         17  efforts of local leaders in law enforcement in

         18  defining and implementing rules that will

         19  effectively eliminate or minimize opportunities to

         20  exploit the system.

         21                 State Farm believes that the subject

         22  proposal properly establishes parameters for

         23  identifying and charging those who create, manage

         24  and feed institutions that prey upon New York's

         25  no-fault system and New York insurance consumers.
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          2                 We are equally encouraged by efforts

          3  to expand the list of potential providers to include

          4  disciplines known to engage in and perpetuate the

          5  pattern of no-fault fraud.

          6                 We would urge the City Council,

          7  however, to include the field of psychological

          8  treatment to the list of subject disciplines

          9  inasmuch as it, too, accounts for a proportionate

         10  share of the activity contributing to New York's

         11  increasing fraud challenges.

         12                 State Farm appreciates efforts to

         13  quantify and obtain empirical data that purportedly

         14  will assist in vetting the challenge and defining

         15  its scope.

         16                 We contend, however, that the level

         17  of sophistication and the degree of ingenuity under

         18  which these clinics and their owners form and

         19  operate is so clever and allusive that they will

         20  subvert the Council's very intent by finding ways to

         21  circumvent the law and/or thwart its application.

         22                 We believe reporting will not serve a

         23  functional purpose here, if it cannot foreclose the

         24  opportunity for the most egregious offenders, to

         25  allay themselves of pecuniary risk or exposure by
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          2  simply willing their way into and out of existence.

          3                 Moreover, speaking from experience,

          4  we believe that the ability of these clinics to

          5  overwhelm their prey with paper and in ways designed

          6  to be evasive and to promote burden, would be the

          7  standard course of action, and thus fly in the face

          8  of the requirement.

          9                 In other words, there are ways that

         10  we believe these folks will simply try to get around

         11  the reporting requirement, and we have some

         12  suggestions for hopefully helping close those gaps.

         13                 State Farm suggests the City Council

         14  strongly consider provisions that require clinics to

         15  be audited as a means to checking and verifying

         16  their activity.

         17                 By doing so, the regulating

         18  department can exercise greater and more purposeful

         19  control, while also playing a more direct role in

         20  facilitating the desired outcome.

         21                 With respect to provisions regarding

         22  solicitation for hire in client procurement, State

         23  Farm believes that the effect of these provisions

         24  may be illusory if violators are permitted to escape

         25  liability by a mere claim that they had no knowledge
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          2  of the owner's purpose.

          3                 Perhaps a rebuttable presumption of

          4  liability or other higher standard would ensure that

          5  there are no escape hatches for those who are

          6  inclined to break the law.

          7                 In addition, State Farm would urge

          8  the Council to consider making it unlawful to

          9  solicit or patients or to pay referral fees in

         10  connection with such solicitation.

         11                 By doing so, it would remove the

         12  profit incentive from runners and others who seek to

         13  leverage the system for their own personal being.

         14                 State Farm commends the Council's

         15  efforts in seeking to establish a plan for licensing

         16  and the imposition of penalties.

         17                 We believe that licensing medical

         18  clinics and the imposition of penalties,

         19  particularly in the five boroughs, is a sound and

         20  rational approach to gaining a handle on fraud.

         21                 If executed correctly and in

         22  conjunction with forfeiture penalties for

         23  non-compliance, it could properly eradicate a number

         24  of otherwise illegitimate clinics in New York City,

         25  thus leading to a more competitive and stable auto
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          2  insurance marketplace for all New York drivers.

          3                 By this we mean the law should impose

          4  penalties on a per violation basis where

          5  appropriate, additionally it should incorporate

          6  provisions for defining consequences for

          7  non-compliance.

          8                 For example, insurers should not be

          9  obligated to reimburse clinics where assignments are

         10  taken that are not by properly licensed clinics, or

         11  under the City's licensing scheme.

         12                 Similarly, the failure to comply with

         13  the licensing law should automatically disqualify a

         14  clinic from taking assignments, thus subjecting it

         15  to penalty and relieving the insurer of its

         16  obligation to issue payment for benefits under no

         17  fault.

         18                 Secondly, the law should impose

         19  notice requirements, with respect to licensing and

         20  the conduct of physicians and owners or others who

         21  affiliate with these medical clinics.

         22                 Owners and parties bearing a

         23  financial interest in these clinics should have an

         24  affirmative obligation to see to it that the conduct

         25  of its affairs are legal, ethical and in compliance
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          2  with established laws and regulations.

          3                 Similarly, where the conduct is in

          4  breach, they should have an obligation to disclose,

          5  provided such conduct is or can be reasonably known.

          6                 Finally, we strongly suggest that the

          7  Council consider forming a state and local task

          8  force to review the current multi-disciplinary

          9  model, and the role that medical protocols can play

         10  in minimizing fraud and helping manage the cost of

         11  insurance.

         12                 I thank you again for your time and

         13  for this opportunity to speak with you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. I want

         15  to apologize for being in and out. There is a time

         16  bound issue in my district that I'm trying to be

         17  helpful on, I'm not sure I am, but I'm trying

         18  regarding a deadline at 7:00 tonight, it's a union

         19  labor management situation, so I apologize for that.

         20                 I just wanted to ask one question.

         21  You had mentioned, sir, introducing, adding

         22  psychiatric care into the bill, would that be, in

         23  thinking about that, it just seemed like that might

         24  be challenging to do because it's a little harder to

         25  quantify the beginning, middle and end of that type
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          2  of care. You know, in an office all you need is two

          3  chairs and a box of tissues and, you know, seemingly

          4  you have all of the equipment you need, so tell me

          5  how we could -- I'm not saying it's a bad idea, I'm

          6  just not sure how you would do it if there is other

          7  places we could look to as an example of that.

          8                 I have to be honest, I haven't

          9  really, in thinking about these issues, was really

         10  only thinking physically, so-to-speak, but I think

         11  it's a valid point that, you know, that is another

         12  way that someone could attempt to perpetuate fraud.

         13  So, I was kind of joking, but, seriously, how would

         14  you make that trackable, or quantifiable,

         15  so-to-speak?

         16                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Actually, psychiatric

         17  care is in the definition. I had referred to

         18  psychological --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's what I

         20  meant. Sorry, I apologize.

         21                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Psychological

         22  treatment, the reason that flashes on my radar

         23  screen is that recently we had a medical provider

         24  bill us at an exorbitant rate, and we started

         25  challenging those claims. This was a provider who
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          2  was based in Massachusetts, all this particular

          3  provider was doing was receiving a piece of paper

          4  that a claimant had filled out, it was a check box,

          5  check off the things that apply, it went in the mail

          6  to the provider who read it, made some notes, called

          7  up a technician, said this is what I think, end of

          8  discussion.

          9                 We stopped paying his bills and asked

         10  for an EUO. He came in for an EUO once, he charged

         11  us $1,100. And we, under the regulation, were

         12  required to pay expenses for traveling. Our claim

         13  reps paid it a couple of times, then we challenged

         14  him on the payment and we realized that what he was

         15  charging us was the actual fee for the bill that he

         16  submitted. So, when we denied the bills after the

         17  EUO, he never challenged it.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Okay.

         19                 MR. HOLLOWAY: This gentleman never

         20  stepped foot in the State of New York, but was using

         21  a technician to bill for services that we decided

         22  were not, based on the IME and based on our

         23  investigative efforts, were not only, not medically

         24  necessary, but they didn't really serve a

         25  fundamental purpose for the insured, and those are
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          2  the kinds of actions that we're seeking to --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Because there had

          4  actually been no care there.

          5                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: It's not saying

          7  that somebody is wanting ten more sessions or

          8  something like that. Okay.

          9                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         11  Yassky, do you have --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Just briefly,

         13  because I know we have one more panel of witnesses,

         14  I'm very eager to get their testimony here and hear

         15  what they have to say.

         16                 But briefly, you referenced, Mr.

         17  Holloway, a particular, I guess runner, who you

         18  said, one anecdote of one instance in which a runner

         19  was getting a fee of $1,500 per referral. Is that

         20  what's the market rate? What's the going rate?

         21                 MR. BUTLER: Mark Butler, State Farm.

         22                 It depends. A lot of it depends on

         23  the carrier now. It used to be State Farm could get

         24  a State Farm patient who had State Farm insurance

         25  could get $1,500 to $2,000 per hit. We've kind of
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          2  knocked that down and now we're not the sexy thing

          3  to have right now.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Wait a second.

          5  You're telling me that the street price for an auto

          6  accident victim depends on the insurance company?

          7                 MR. BUTLER: It depends on the

          8  carrier.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And what's the

         10  range? What's out there?

         11                 MR. BUTLER: As it stands right now,

         12  State Farm, a State Farm person probably gets around

         13  like $300 to $400, but we're not the hot one to get

         14  right now. Other carriers, you know, it's cyclical.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: How can I get

         16  to 1,500 or 2,000? Who do I have to bring in? What

         17  carrier?

         18                 MR. BUTLER: That really depends right

         19  now. I don't have the exact which carrier is the

         20  hottest one.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay.

         22                 MR. BUTLER: But a lot of it depends

         23  on that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. That's

         25  very interesting. Thank you.
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          2                 Again, Mr. Holloway, you gave, this

          3  was really -- I was delighted to hear you give the

          4  number of 500, I was delighted to get some

          5  concreteness here. You said you think there are

          6  about 500 medical mills. And I take it, 500

          7  providers out there who focus on the no-fault

          8  system; did I hear that?

          9                 MR. HOLLOWAY: You heard correctly,

         10  yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And is it your

         12  -- again, that's 500 who they get their revenue

         13  pretty much all or mostly from no fault. How common,

         14  or of your, out of 1,000 of your insureds that

         15  submit claims, do you have a sense of how many of

         16  them are going to doctors that are regular, for lack

         17  of a better word, regular doctors who they get, they

         18  get their reimbursement from, you know, employer

         19  provided health insurance, they get reimbursement

         20  from Medicare and they get reimbursement from no

         21  fault, where it happens to be an auto accident, and

         22  how many of them are the no-fault mills?

         23                 MR. HOLLOWAY: I don't --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Do you see

         25  what I'm asking? Do you have a ball park guess?
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          2  Would that be, you know, five out of 1,000 or 200

          3  out of 1,000?

          4                 MR. HOLLOWAY: I don't purport to have

          5  any knowledge of that, but if I had to hazard a

          6  guess, it would be closer to five, rather than 200.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Right. Okay,

          8  that makes sense.

          9                 And here my last question is you said

         10  you made 7,000 in the last year that, I don't

         11  remember if it was 2004, whatever the last year that

         12  you had data, roughly 7,000 referrals to the

         13  Insurance Fraud Bureau in New York; is that correct?

         14                 MR. HOLLOWAY: That's correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Do you have --

         16  maybe that was too recent, and there was something

         17  like 5,000 the previous year.

         18                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Correct.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And do you

         20  have any sense of what happens to those? I mean, of

         21  those 5,000, how many result in a prosecution? You

         22  know, of the ones that are a year, I guess if 7,000

         23  was last year, it might even be too new, but do you

         24  have any guess? I mean, does one out of ten result

         25  in prosecution? One out of a hundred.
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          2                 MR. HOLLOWAY: I don't believe the

          3  number is as high as one out of ten.

          4                 I think Gary just handed me a

          5  statistic that in 2003, the Insurance Fraud Bureau

          6  actually pursued 88 cases.

          7                 MR. HENNING: A little higher. That's

          8  only through August --

          9                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Through August 2000,

         10  right.

         11                 MR. HENNING: The year 2002, 182.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And that's

         13  active cases or that's prosecutions?

         14                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Those are arrests.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Oh, okay.

         16                 MR. HENNING: But don't forget, that's

         17  only arrests by the Fraud Bureau. That doesn't take

         18  into account anything that gets referred to local --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Well, that's

         20  not a trivial number actually. That's, you know, all

         21  right, that's very useful to have on the record.

         22                 Okay, my last question then is, I

         23  think it was Mr. Holloway -- yes, it would have been

         24  because you said for State Farm, that -- let me see

         25  if I got this right, was three percent of your
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          2  policies are in New York, and ten percent of your

          3  losses; is that what you said?

          4                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Ten percent of the

          5  company's losses back in early 2000 were

          6  attributable to New York.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: So, New York

          8  is generating losses, you know, three and something,

          9  three and a third roughly times the rest of the

         10  country.

         11                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Is that, you

         13  know, if average policy elsewhere is generating a

         14  hundred dollars of loss, average New York policy is

         15  generating $330 in loss, something like that; how

         16  much of that 330 would you guess is fraud, and how

         17  much of it is, you know, driving around on Broadway

         18  you're more likely to get into an accident, I don't

         19  -- less likely to wear a seatbelt, I don't know

         20  what the other factors, I'm sure there are other

         21  legitimate factors that would account for some of

         22  that; how much of that?

         23                 MR. HOLLOWAY: State Farm does not

         24  track that statistics. However, an industry study

         25  placed the number somewhere between ten and 30
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          2  percent.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. Okay.

          4                 MR. HENNING: I was talking, I, having

          5  had prior conversations with you --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes.

          7                 MR. HENNING: I talked with ISO, the

          8  Insurance Services Office, to try to get at that,

          9  and she said that's just a really hard number to get

         10  because there's so many counterveiling trends, if

         11  you will, you would think higher density in the

         12  City, so you're going to have higher costs, but

         13  hopefully the cars aren't driving as fast on, you

         14  know, on Broadway as they are on 95. Although, Ms.

         15  Catino told me about her cab ride today, but --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Right there's

         17  some anomalies. Again, I know we have very limited

         18  time here, but this was, one of the numbers to me

         19  really sticks out here, is that the average cost per

         20  no-fault claim in New York City is so much higher

         21  than the rest of the State. That absolutely to me,

         22  that's very counter-intuitive because exactly of

         23  that issue.

         24                 I mean, you would think that the

         25  average accident here causes less damage, or maybe
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          2  more of them, more accidents, one would think that

          3  they would be less damaging because you don't have

          4  too many people doing 60 miles an hour on New York

          5  City streets. And the rest of the State, one would

          6  think that that's a much more common accident.

          7                 MR. HENNING: And I would even

          8  challenge that it's necessarily more accidents

          9  because you have higher density, but don't forget

         10  you have a lot of people just park their cars,

         11  especially in your borough, just park their car, but

         12  they're insured, so they figure into the statistics

         13  you'll take the car out once a week on a weekend. Os

         14  it's not necessarily that there's going to be more

         15  use of the cars.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you,

         17  Chair Quinn.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Council Member

         19  Stewart.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         21                 I want to go back to a couple of

         22  things you said you would like to see. For example,

         23  shorter time for submittal of the claims.

         24                 MR. HENNING: What I was saying, well,

         25  we'd always like shorter submitted time for the
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          2  submittal of claims. I was just saying that the

          3  amended regulation, which did shorten the time

          4  frame, has proven very beneficial. Because if you

          5  look at the claim cost statistics, you will see that

          6  after the reg 68 changes with the shortened time

          7  frames were put into effect, the no-fault claim

          8  costs went down, and we believe that a large part of

          9  that is to the changes and the time frames.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: What, if any,

         11  role does statute of limitation -- for example,

         12  someone may get into an accident today and no bills

         13  are submitted until about eight, nine months later,

         14  what role does that --

         15                 MR. HENNING: I'm sorry? They've had

         16  the treatment?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: They may have

         18  had the treatment, but the fact the claims were not

         19  submitted until nine months later.

         20                 MR. HENNING: You deny it because the

         21  claims have not been submitted in a timely fashion.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: What is a

         23  timely fashion?

         24                 MR. HENNING: Right now you have 45

         25  days.
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          2                 MR. HOLLOWAY: Forty-five days to

          3  submit the bills, right. Thirty days to submit the

          4  claim. Right.

          5                 MR. HENNING: But I just want to point

          6  out something, that it's not the consumer that gets

          7  hurt on this. Because despite what the Department of

          8  Health said this morning, you're not going to find

          9  anyone who does not assign their claims.

         10                 People aren't going to negotiate. You

         11  go in, you sign your form, you sign the claims to

         12  your medical provider, all right? So, the person in

         13  question has gotten treatment, now it's just a

         14  question of getting the bill in, and I'm not an

         15  expert in this, by my understanding is that for

         16  medical billings, it's a lot shorter. Even in a

         17  doctor's office, it's a lot shorter than 45 days.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But the

         19  insurance company, who sets the rate?

         20                 MR. HENNING: New York State is a

         21  prior approval state, which means the company will

         22  submit their rates to the insurance department and

         23  then the insurance department has to approve the

         24  rates before they're put out in the market.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And, so, when
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          2  you talk about the medical equipment and so on,

          3  shouldn't there be a standard fee for what it costs?

          4                 MR. HENNING: That's what the changes

          5  to reg 83 did. It established a fee schedule for

          6  services and durable medical equipment.

          7                 But I think I see where you're going.

          8  The issue isn't the overbilling. I mean, necessarily

          9  the overbilling, or, you know, charging a

         10  chiropractic visit charging $5,000, the issue is

         11  charging $50 for 100 chiropractic visits that never

         12  took place. It's more of a crime of volume.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Oh, I see.

         14                 MR. HENNING: Then --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right, my

         16  last question is, how do you compare this type of

         17  problem, the no fault, with workman comp?

         18                 MR. HENNING: That's a good question,

         19  because I was talking to our national claims expert

         20  and they said the medical mills that treat these

         21  no-fault cases are the same ones that treat the

         22  workers comp cases. So, I didn't prepare my

         23  testimony for workers comp but it's the same type

         24  of, it's the same type of problem, billing for

         25  services not rendered. So, it's the same type of
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          2  issue, and it's a problem but it's not as big a

          3  problem.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Would the

          5  workman comp, it's the government that pays for

          6  workman comp, based on the workman comp insurance.

          7                 MR. HENNING: No. The insurance

          8  carriers pay the -- I mean, the workers comp, there

          9  are several ways you can get workers comp. You can

         10  even get it through a private carrier, an insurance

         11  company --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Right.

         13                 MR. HENNING: -- One of mine. You can

         14  be self-insured. The big companies will Xerox. IBM

         15  will pay their comp benefits by themselves. So,

         16  they'll take on all the risks. Or you can do what's

         17  called self-insured trusts where companies will get

         18  together and they'll pool their capital and pay the

         19  comp benefits, they'll pay a company to run their

         20  program for them.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Workman comp,

         22  in no fault, they have the same kind of problem. How

         23  is this law going to help workman comp, people who

         24  are billing and doing the same kind of problem and

         25  same kind of things?
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          2                 MR. HENNING: It would have the

          3  ancillary benefit of, if you have these medical

          4  mills that are billing for no-fault fraud, if this

          5  law helps shut those medical mills down, in the

          6  process you will also be eliminating some comp

          7  fraud, because these are the mills that are also

          8  perpetuating comp fraud.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Madam Chair?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: I think we

         12  should look at workman comp and see if we can really

         13  incorporate all of that, because I know some

         14  providers, all they do is workman comp. Nothing more

         15  than workman comp. So, I believe that's how they're

         16  getting rich by doing this. So, I think we should

         17  look at that area also and make sure that we stop

         18  the loopholes.

         19                 MR. HOLLOWAY: If I can just add to

         20  that? The one important distinction on the workers

         21  comp side is that they do have guidelines for

         22  treatment under -- for medical treatment, which is

         23  what we don't have on the auto no-fault side, which

         24  is what we've actually been trying to argue for,

         25  both to the State Legislature and with the Insurance
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          2  Department. And reg 83 was part of the broader

          3  effort by the Department to deal with this whole

          4  issue of concurrent care and to put guidelines in

          5  place. But the Department has withdrawn from that

          6  dialogue for now and we're not sure what's going to

          7  happen with that.

          8                 We've actually been asking the

          9  Department also to consider putting, just simply

         10  putting in the American Medical Association

         11  guidelines for treatment, because that would help.

         12  It may not be, again, the silver bullet solution but

         13  it would help, and there's been a little bit of

         14  persistence on that front as well. We're having what

         15  we hope will be some meaningful dialogue around

         16  these kinds of changes over the next 12 to 18

         17  months.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you. Thank

         20  you all very much.

         21                 We're going to call up our final

         22  panel, which I can't find the piece of paper right

         23  here. Marc Dittenhoefer. And I'm sorry if I

         24  mispronounced your name. New York State Trial

         25  Lawyers Association. And Stuart Israel, please.

                                                            123

          1  HEALTH AND CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 Who ever would like to go first is

          3  great. Just ID yourself.

          4                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Thank you very

          5  much, Madam Chair.

          6                 Good afternoon to both chairs and to

          7  the ladies and gentlemen of the Council's Committees

          8  on Health and Consumer Affairs. My name is Marc

          9  Dittenhoefer, Officer and Auto Litigation and

         10  no-fault Insurance Committee Chair of the New York

         11  State Trial Lawyers Association.

         12                 With me today is Stuart Israel, a

         13  no-fault practitioner and expert and prominent

         14  member of our organization.

         15                 We are honored and pleased to be able

         16  to share our thoughts with you today on the subject

         17  of the Council's proposed Motor Vehicle Insurance

         18  Fraud Bill.

         19                 We especially wish to thank Council

         20  Member Yassky for inviting our appearance here today

         21  to speak in opposition to this measure that he,

         22  himself, is sponsoring.

         23                 In doing so he has exhibited no small

         24  amount of political courage, as well as an

         25  open-mindedness and commitment to the welfare of all
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          2  New Yorkers that we feel --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I think this

          4  hearing has been entirely too much of a David Yassky

          5  love-a-thon and we're just going to have to sum up

          6  that part of your comments.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I had no small

          8  amount of courage, I think not.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: But I appreciate

         10  --

         11                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: That's my last

         12  comment on that topic.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: All right, good.

         14  Good. Because it's too much. It's too much.

         15                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: The purpose of

         16  Introduction 708 couldn't be more high-minded.

         17                 Stopping the fraud that saps the

         18  no-fault system of its ability to properly serve New

         19  York's innocent victims and contributes to the

         20  unacceptably high insurance rates that bedevil City

         21  residents.

         22                 In its purpose, you will get no

         23  opposition from us. Unfortunately, our vast

         24  experience in this rather specialized area of law

         25  convinces us, that despite its high purpose this
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          2  bill will do virtually nothing to achieve its

          3  intent, yet it will cause unintended consequences

          4  that are disastrous for New York's innocent victims.

          5  Many of whom are poor, underserved by medical

          6  services as it is, and who most need this Council to

          7  look after their rights, as well as the legitimate

          8  rights of others. Parenthetically that's a group

          9  that hasn't been mentioned yet here today by anybody

         10  else who has testified.

         11                 New York's no-fault law was

         12  originally enacted as a reparations act for those

         13  injured in auto accidents, giving access to

         14  reasonable and necessary medical care from providers

         15  of their own choosing, in return for stripping from

         16  them their unfettered right to sue.

         17                 As a public benefit program it has

         18  done an immeasurable amount of good. It has also

         19  gradually become the target of unscrupulous huxters

         20  who have gained the system to the enduring detriment

         21  of accident victims, honest medical practitioners

         22  and lawyers and the rate-payers of New York State.

         23                 Repeated attempts have been made to

         24  stamp out fraud in the provision of medical

         25  treatment. One of the most popular tactics involved
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          2  in one way or another, the imposition of yet more

          3  and more paperwork, reporting requirements,

          4  qualifications on those rendering care.

          5                 This is the tact that is taken by

          6  Intro. 708, and as such is the most practically

          7  dangerous aspect of the proposed bill.

          8                 In its definitions and applications,

          9  this intro deems the treatment of auto accidents by

         10  a provider as a suspect activity in and of itself.

         11  It imposes significant additional paperwork among

         12  health care practices already overburdened by the

         13  same at both the federal and state levels, as well

         14  as from insurance carriers in plans, and adds an

         15  additional layer of qualification to receive payment

         16  under state law, no less, for no-fault services that

         17  providers in other New York cities and towns do not

         18  have to meet, a serious and legally dubious result.

         19                 This is made all the more onerous by

         20  the enactment by the State Legislature of a health

         21  care provider decertification bill just this last

         22  session, which has similar goals, restrictions and

         23  intent as the Council's new intro.

         24                 Thus, legitimate doctors are now to

         25  be beset by further oversight, record keeping and
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          2  paperwork at the local level if 708 becomes law.

          3                 Many, many health care providers have

          4  been burdened to the max already by the demands

          5  placed upon them by the no-fault system. W have seen

          6  more and more providers remove themselves from

          7  treating accident cases no-fault patients because of

          8  the sheer difficulty and annoyance of navigating the

          9  system in order to get paid.

         10                 This attempt by Intro. No. 708 to

         11  stanch the bleeding caused by fraud will not only be

         12  ineffective, but will cause the hemorrhage of honest

         13  doctors from the no-fault system, typically those

         14  who serve the most needy of our citizens in the most

         15  underprivileged of neighborhoods.

         16                 The unintended effect of this bill

         17  will be more and more to seed the field to the

         18  unscrupulous who game the system, while providing a

         19  powerful incentive to leave no-fault to the honest

         20  providers who are practices that are also legitimate

         21  businesses, and which must also turn a profit to

         22  survive.

         23                 We heard just a short while ago from

         24  Mr. Henning of the AIA, I believe, that one of the

         25  reasons that fraud is so high in New York is that
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          2  medical care costs are higher in New York City.

          3  Nothing could be further from the truth. Medical

          4  payments under no fault are governed by State law.

          5  They come under, as Council member point out, the

          6  workers compensation schedule, except for a couple

          7  of very small unscheduled items, the insurance

          8  industry has not been candid or forthcoming in the

          9  actual statistics on this, and they're providing a

         10  boon to themselves, rather than to the rate-payers

         11  or to the injured victims of New York State by

         12  pushing for such legislation.

         13                 Our experience has taught us that

         14  those who are most interested in abusing the system

         15  are always prepared to negotiate regulatory

         16  requirements and adapt to rule changes as a

         17  necessary cost of doing their dirty business. For

         18  legitimate providers, on the other hand, a new layer

         19  of regulation and oversight will be just enough

         20  additional burden for many to renounce no-fault

         21  patients, removing care from people who need it

         22  most.

         23                 In this regard I'll just call the

         24  Council's attention to recent indictments by I think

         25  Westchester District Attorney Piro of these exact
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          2  type of no-fault mills, a tiny percentage of people

          3  who practice in the industry of providing care to

          4  accident victims, and the reason, the way that they

          5  were able to indict these people and locate them was

          6  not that they were beyond the time for filing, but

          7  they all filed within the deadline, the day before

          8  the deadline ran out.

          9                 We at NYSTLA have many concerns about

         10  this bill, about its constitutionality and the wrath

         11  of litigation that it is likely to spawn, about its

         12  definitions and applicability, about who qualifies

         13  for its strictures and how oversight is to be

         14  determined, about the cost to the New York City

         15  Department of Health and to the City's taxpayers,

         16  about the potential for inconsistency between the

         17  City and State on issues of disqualification now

         18  that the State has enacted their own bill. In short,

         19  about the breadth and nature of its attack on the

         20  problem that is, after all, quite discreet. If it

         21  were at all possible to get rid of fraud by

         22  legislating at it, that would have worked long ago.

         23  This is a law enforcement problem, not an enactment

         24  one.

         25                 As Borough President Markowitz
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          2  pointed out, sure, when you shine the light on

          3  roaches, they scurry. But they don't scurry and dry

          4  up and blow away. They scurry to hide and come back

          5  somewhere else, another day, another time in another

          6  way. And I think we need to get at this in a law

          7  enforcement manner. We heard from the District

          8  Attorney who is in favor of this bill, that, in

          9  fact, there are plenty of laws on the books by which

         10  these people can be prosecuted. One would suggest

         11  that more resources be devoted by this Council, if

         12  not by the City itself, to precisely those types of

         13  efforts.

         14                 Yet, of all our many concerns about

         15  the wisdom and efficacy of Introduction 708, what

         16  looms largest for us is what it does to our fellow

         17  citizens who have the misfortune to need care from

         18  auto accident-related injuries.

         19                 This bill will force good providers

         20  from the marketplace for them, and it's not their

         21  fault.

         22                 I'd like to turn it over to Mr.

         23  Israel.

         24                 MR. ISRAEL: Thank you, Marc. My name

         25  is Stuart Israel. I'd like to thank Councilman
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          2  Yassky, Chairperson Quinn and the rest of the

          3  Council for giving us this opportunity to address

          4  this important topic.

          5                 First of all, I'd like to start off

          6  by saying that no amount of fraud is an acceptable

          7  amount of fraud. However, I'd like to paint a

          8  somewhat different picture than has been painted

          9  here today, and take issue with the underlying

         10  premise of the bill.

         11                 Many of the factual conclusions are

         12  now outdated and erroneous. The Insurance

         13  Information Institute, the very organization is

         14  2,000 reporters prominently cited by the Council as

         15  justification for the instant bill, issued a

         16  comprehensive update just four months ago suggesting

         17  that the no-fault crisis has largely been solved.

         18                 We attached a copy of some of the

         19  highlights of that bill to our package. This

         20  insurance industry advocacy group called New York's

         21  recent fight against no-fault fraud an incredible

         22  success story. In fact, contrary to the bill's

         23  legislative findings and intent, the Institute found

         24  that New York PIP claimed severity is now

         25  significantly lower, not higher, than the rest of
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          2  the nation. These are insurance industry numbers.

          3                 Similarly, New York PIP premiums are

          4  now lower than the national average, having dropped

          5  44 percent since the 2000 report. This premium

          6  reduction in New York is even more astounding,

          7  considering that the rest of the nation saw its

          8  rates increase by 26 percent during the same period.

          9                 Even more notably and as mentioned, I

         10  believe, by Mr. Henning, these figures were still

         11  trending downward at the time of the report. Indeed,

         12  the superintendent of insurance promulgated sweeping

         13  changes to the no-fault laws in 2002 designed

         14  specifically to address fraud and abuse.

         15                 By last year, as noted earlier, the

         16  Department began to see results of its aggressive

         17  fraud-fighting campaign and insurers statewide loss

         18  ratio -- loss ratio is the amount of dollars that a

         19  carrier takes in versus the amount that they pay out

         20  for claims, had fallen from 86 cents on every dollar

         21  in 2002 to 61 cents as of June 30th, 2004.

         22                 Moreover, the State's average

         23  no-fault losses per claim have dropped almost $3,000

         24  during this time period. And contrary to the

         25  previous indications that $50,000 are being
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          2  submitted or reimbursed per claimant, although the

          3  law allows up to $50,000 to be compensated in

          4  extreme situations, the average payout per loss now

          5  stands at $5,000 per claim.

          6                 The national average happens to be

          7  higher than New York's average right now.

          8                 As a result, last year the

          9  superintendent called upon the State's insurers to

         10  reduce their automobile premiums. To date, 20 of the

         11  largest auto insurers representing almost 70 percent

         12  of the entire market had filed for rate reductions

         13  ranging from three to ten percent.

         14                 These reductions will save New York

         15  consumers nearly $400 million in premiums in 2005.

         16                 Also, although State Farm did mention

         17  that approximately 7,000 reports were made to the

         18  Insurance Fraud Bureau by its company, overall

         19  reports of no-fault fraud went down 17 percent last

         20  year.

         21                 In fact, there were almost as many

         22  complaints made to the superintendent last year

         23  concerning insurance carrier abuses as claimant

         24  abuses.

         25                 When announcing these reductions, the
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          2  superintendent universally held the effects recent

          3  changes to the no-fault have had in combatting

          4  fraud, he calls it "The anti-fraud dividend."

          5  Moreover, all of these reductions were effected

          6  before the aforementioned State Legislature passed a

          7  recent bill allowing for the decertification of

          8  fraudulent and no-fault health service providers.

          9                 I would note that the Brooklyn

         10  Borough's President report was also based largely

         11  upon these outdated numbers. I believe the figures

         12  were taken from 2001 or 2000. We're trying to

         13  introduce legislation to a problem that was five

         14  years ago and has changed dramatically.

         15                 Also noted in the Brooklyn Borough's

         16  report is the failure to include certain important

         17  members of our community before issuing the report.

         18  Most notably NYSTLA, the State Trial Lawyers, more

         19  importantly, there were no providers, the very

         20  culprits of the report included in the committee

         21  before the report was issued.

         22                 Previously it had been mentioned by I

         23  think a few of the speakers that the State has been

         24  inactive in trying to address this problem. However,

         25  throughout the testimony we have noted that the
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          2  Insurance Department has a Fraud Bureau that they

          3  promulgated sweeping changes to the no-fault laws in

          4  2002 that the State Legislature just recently passed

          5  legislation designed to eliminate fraudulent health

          6  care providers. And I also believe that Governor

          7  Pataki has allotted a fairly significant amount of

          8  money to the Attorney General specifically for an

          9  auto fraud's prosecutor.

         10                 This bill will actually harm

         11  legitimate health care providers. The scope of the

         12  bill is wider than the problem, and the daunting new

         13  bureaucratic requirements are too confusing for

         14  already over-burdened health care providers to

         15  understand. It will likely touch almost every

         16  practitioner in the five boroughs, even though it is

         17  designed for quote/unquote medical mills in

         18  Brooklyn.

         19                 The reason for this is its broad

         20  definitions. In the reporting section of the bill, a

         21  clinic is defined as any health service provider

         22  that submits even a single no-fault claim. Thus, an

         23  orthopaedic group, for example, that may see 500

         24  patients in a given year, but just two auto accident

         25  victims, must spend countless hours every six months
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          2  providing information about its practice to the

          3  Department, all for no particular benefit to the

          4  community.

          5                 Now picture that practice trying to

          6  comply with the reporting without the assistance of

          7  the computer program. You can guess the likely

          8  effect upon that practice. Either it will no longer

          9  treat auto accident victims, reducing the patient's

         10  ability to receive rehabilitation for its injuries,

         11  or will simply not comply with the reporting

         12  requirement at all.

         13                 There are similar disparate problems

         14  in the licensing section of the bill.

         15                 What if a provider has two offices?

         16  One in the Bronx and the other in White Plains. The

         17  Bronx office might have 51 percent of its claims as

         18  no fault, but the White Plains office is only 30

         19  percent no fault. It's unclear whether or not that

         20  particular provider would need to comply with the

         21  licensing requirement.

         22                 If it did, it is likely that it may

         23  try and send some of its Bronx patients to White

         24  Plains to avoid it having to comply with the

         25  licensing requirement. This is a hardship upon the
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          2  patient, not just the provider.

          3                 Another problem in the broad

          4  definition of the clinic can be found in the

          5  licensing section of the bill.

          6                 A provider who opens a new office who

          7  might see an auto accident patient, who may have

          8  closed a clinic within the prior two years must get

          9  a license. Even if he had only seen one auto

         10  accident victim in the prior two years at the office

         11  that was closed.

         12                 Again, it is unclear whether the

         13  provider must obtain the license at the office that

         14  had previously closed was not within the five

         15  boroughs. In fact, under this bill, if a provider

         16  decided not to reopen a new office but simply moved

         17  the location of his present office, he must reapply

         18  for a new license.

         19                 For those subject to licensure, the

         20  burdens are great. Licensees must report the total

         21  number of hours worked by every health care provider

         22  whom rendered care at the office.

         23                 What purpose this requirement is

         24  designed to address is not clear.

         25                 Regardless, the net effect is that
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          2  the applicant needs to start tracking such

          3  information at least one year in advance of when it

          4  may think it needs to be licensed.

          5                 Finally, requiring a $100,000 bond

          6  will help ensure that only large scale clinics can

          7  afford to treat auto accident victims. Exactly the

          8  opposite of what this bill purports to accomplish.

          9                 It further stigmatizes health care

         10  practitioners who only treat injured patients as

         11  inherently unscrupulous.

         12                 I'd just like to make two or three

         13  quick notes. With respect to the recent bill that

         14  was introduced by the State to decertify the Health

         15  Care providers, I'd like to note that there could be

         16  some interesting conflicts that arise from that.

         17                 For example, what would occur if the

         18  State, through its process, held a hearing and

         19  following its conclusion it determined that the

         20  provider was not engaged in any impropriety, but the

         21  Council held a hearing and found otherwise? Or the

         22  Office of Professional Misconduct had a hearing --

         23  had a finding that was inconsistent. There is

         24  questions of equal protection --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: The Council, we're
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          2  not, although I love the idea of me getting to sit

          3  and decide, yes, it could be fraud --

          4                 MR. ISRAEL: Well, the Health

          5  Department is supposed to promulgate regulations, I

          6  believe, or standards.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Yes. But Fran I

          8  think could back me up on this, I'm pretty sure the

          9  Health Department is never giving the authority to

         10  say who is or isn't in compliance on anything.

         11                 MR. ISRAEL: I apologize. My error.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's okay. I

         13  love the idea of it, but, no.

         14                 MR. ISRAEL: Finally, the potential

         15  harm of this bill will result in the following, we

         16  believe:

         17                 - It will drive legitimate medical

         18  providers out of the boroughs.

         19                 - It will cause health care providers

         20  to refuse treatment and rehabilitation to victims of

         21  automobile accidents for fear of the regulatory

         22  burdens associated with it.

         23                 - It will cause, in particular, poor

         24  patients into already over-crowded City hospital

         25  system or into Medicaid.
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          2                 - Honest, but overwhelmed practices,

          3  will more likely be cited for the reporting errors

          4  than the medical mills whose entire practices depend

          5  upon the compliance with those reporting

          6  requirements.

          7                 Overall, this will result in patients

          8  having less choice for their health care needs.

          9  Thank you. We're ready to receive any questions.

         10                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: If I just might add

         11  two quick things?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Sure.

         13                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: In listening here

         14  today I made some notes of what had gone before us,

         15  and two issues had developed not really prepared for

         16  that I'm a little bit concerned about, and I don't

         17  want the Council to walk away with the wrong

         18  impression about it.

         19                 There seems to have been an equation

         20  here today with full service clinics who treat

         21  no-fault patients with illegal fraudulent no-fault

         22  medical mills, and I think that that's a distinction

         23  that needs to be made.

         24                 Just because you have a clinic that

         25  is a full-service clinic and serves an
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          2  underprivileged area doesn't make it a mill. It is

          3  an efficient way to practice medicine where the

          4  reimbursement scheme, the payment scheme is a

          5  limited profit margin, as it is under comp. And for

          6  people to do this, to engage in a life of practice

          7  that would otherwise go uncommented about on Park

          8  Avenue, but if it's in Bushwick, then it becomes a

          9  medical mill that's fraudulent and needs some

         10  attention is a problem.

         11                 Also, we heard some anecdotal report

         12  that some of these mills are the same as those who

         13  treat under workers comp. My experience, I mean I

         14  haven't seen what that is based upon, my experience

         15  tells me there's a disconnect there. Something has

         16  got to be wrong. Not only is no fault under a

         17  similar pay schedule as workers comp, workers comp,

         18  as we all know, is prescreened, it's preapproval. No

         19  fault is not. The profit margins are different. The

         20  no-fault mill, and there are these mills, and we

         21  need to get rid of those mills, and we need to do it

         22  effectively, cost efficiently and quickly, but those

         23  mills make their profit on no treatment and not

         24  going through what you have to go through in order

         25  to preapprove and to submit yourself to a body that
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          2  will then allow you to treat.

          3                 I'm done.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: That's okay. Let

          5  me just ask a question, because in the briefing

          6  paper, the staff went to pains to make a distinction

          7  between the -- to make the distinction you were just

          8  making. One of the questions actually the staff

          9  asked that we're hoping that you all might be able

         10  to add some clarification on, are what are the

         11  factors, or factor, do you, the Trial Lawyers

         12  Association, think would be effective in helping to

         13  identify and make a distinction between a medical

         14  mill, as opposed -- quote/unquote, as opposed to a

         15  legitimate multi-disciplinary medical practice?

         16                 I mean, you don't have to give those

         17  to us now, but if you have thoughts on how one does

         18  make a distinction because I think it is a fair

         19  point, there should be a distinction made, we would

         20  appreciate any information on that.

         21                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Sure. In this

         22  particular field, though, that is the Holy Grail,

         23  isn't it? I mean, that is what everybody has been

         24  looking for nationally as you've heard from the

         25  insurers, on the State level, as you've heard from
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          2  the State Legislators, the dishonest folk are really

          3  good at camouflage so they look like the honest

          4  guys. It's not so easy.

          5                 I think some of the things you have

          6  in the bill are very good. A runners provision is

          7  very important because if you cut off the nexus

          8  between the street, all right? And the billing

          9  event, then these people flounder around because

         10  they don't have a legitimate source of their

         11  business, and you will see them almost dry up in the

         12  sunlight, all right? Those were the cockroaches that

         13  Borough President Markowitz was talking about. But

         14  if you don't do it discreetly and just issue blanket

         15  requirements, that the legitimate and the

         16  illegitimate will have to comply with, they'll just

         17  scurry away and find a way to comply cost

         18  effectively for them.

         19                 MR. ISRAEL: If I can just add, my

         20  experience, and I've been representing health care

         21  practitioners for 16 years, and I have noticed a

         22  continual trend that every time the insurance

         23  department adds a layer of regulatory burden, all

         24  with the high-minded purpose of reducing the abuse

         25  that does exist, the net effect is that the
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          2  provider, the marginal provider who may see a small

          3  percentage of its patients as no fault, ten, 15, 20

          4  percent says this is not worth it. I can't comply

          5  with an entirely different scheme of reimbursement

          6  for such a small percentage of my practice. And what

          7  that leaves is the huge sucking sound that you hear,

          8  or all the patients going to the only ones, only

          9  medical practitioners who are really capable of

         10  complying with these difficult regulatory burdens,

         11  and that's not to suggest they all become medical

         12  mills, but that is going to be the hypocritical

         13  effect of this bill, I believe.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: I hadn't noticed

         15  the sucking sound myself, but perhaps it's the maple

         16  syrup smell instead is what's -- Council Member

         17  Yassky. I was trying to find a way to make a joke

         18  for many days, and you just gave me the opportunity.

         19  Sorry.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And for that I

         21  think we're all really grateful to this panel --

         22                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: It's opening night

         23  at Caroline's tonight.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: All right, I

         25  just have a couple of things. First of all, there's
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          2  a couple of different objections. Mr. Israel, your

          3  last point about -- I'm trying to think of a term, I

          4  don't want to just say legitimate doctors, but not

          5  because I think both of you are saying that some

          6  no-fault specialists are quite legitimate, in fact,

          7  useful, but non-no-fault specialists who do some

          8  no-fault, that you don't want to burden them. I want

          9  to be clear, I agree with that a hundred percent. I

         10  mean, it seems to me, as much as possible, you want

         11  to encourage generalist doctors to take no fault as

         12  well, and to the extent that the bill impose burdens

         13  there, I'd love to work to minimize them, if not

         14  eliminate them. I agree with that a hundred percent.

         15                 Now let's focus on the specialists,

         16  the no-fault specialists.

         17                 Do you, from your own practices, have

         18  a sense of the no-fault special -- I mean, the State

         19  Farm representative said he thought there were about

         20  500, and I guess I'm not clear whether those were

         21  no-fault specialists, or no-fault mills -- let's

         22  define some terms, no-fault mills or no-fault

         23  specialists, who routinely engage in fraud.

         24                 Do you have some sense of what share

         25  of the no-fault specialists are mills in that sense?
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          2  Is it one out of 100 or half?

          3                 MR. ISREAL: I couldn't comment.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: But we agree.

          5  I mean, both of you said a premise of this is that

          6  this is a legitimate problem. And you know what? Let

          7  me just step back, and then I'm going to wrap up

          8  very quickly, because I know it's Halloween here and

          9  I'm also eager to participate in the many

         10  festivities in my district, but Mr. Israel, you

         11  start out by saying you don't think fraud -- I mean,

         12  tell me if you think I'm putting words in your

         13  mouth, but fraud really isn't a big deal problem

         14  anymore, and the numbers from the past have gone

         15  down significantly? And you're right that there's

         16  absolutely been some positive movement. But do I

         17  understand you to be saying you don't think fraud is

         18  a problem?

         19                 MR. ISRAEL: No.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay.

         21                 MR. ISRAEL: I want to be clear. I

         22  think I started, my very first statement was that

         23  any amount of fraud is an unacceptable amount. But

         24  there's a bargain that has to be had with the

         25  community, and fraud has gone down dramatically over
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          2  the past few years, and I was really just taking

          3  issue with the underlying premise.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay.

          5                 MR. ISRAEL: But it's still trending

          6  downward. So, perhaps we should allow some of the

          7  changes that are having an impact, and some of the

          8  new initiatives that are yet to be implemented by

          9  the state to truly have its impact before we rush

         10  into this particular bill.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Just as my

         12  ignorance here, the charts in the back of Marc's

         13  testimony, I think, maybe it's your joint testimony,

         14  NYPIP claim frequency and severity, over 2000 to

         15  2004. PIP claims, that's only no fault --

         16                 MR. ISRAEL: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Or that's any

         18  --

         19                 MR. ISRAEL: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay. You

         21  know, there's no question of the level of no-fault

         22  activity has gone down. It's still, I think you both

         23  agree, above the rest of New York State and

         24  national, tell me if I'm wrong.

         25                 MR. ISRAEL: The numbers cited by the
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          2  Insurance Information Institute suggest that it is

          3  below the national problem, although there was some

          4  specific references, and I don't want to take issue

          5  with them, by Mr. Holloway, I believe, but I don't

          6  believe those numbers suggest that it is necessarily

          7  lower in the City.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay.

          9                 So then we proceed on the premise

         10  that's a problem that needs to be addressed.

         11                 I guess I want to press the Chair's

         12  question, how do you distinguish between the

         13  specialists and the mills? And maybe I'm just

         14  thinking out loud here, your suggestion that

         15  advertising the use of runners is critical; what do

         16  you think of that? What about prohibiting no-fault

         17  specialists from actively soliciting patients in the

         18  way that the mills do?

         19                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Well, as in most

         20  things legal, the devil is in the details. I mean,

         21  solicitation is a form of protected speech, and you

         22  run into problems depending on how you go about

         23  doing that.

         24                 Runners is a specific fraudulent

         25  activity. I think earlier, I think Council Member
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          2  Stewart --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Leave the

          4  constitutional argument aside for a second.

          5                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: All right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: If we could do

          7  it, is that sound policy?

          8                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: It's a problematic

          9  approach, and I'll tell you why. It is legal, it is

         10  proper, there is nothing wrong with being a no-fault

         11  specialist. There's also nothing wrong with

         12  legitimate ways to get business. The problem is

         13  committing insurance fraud.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Bear with me.

         15  I sincerely and genuinely appreciate your kind of

         16  willingness, both before this hearing and today, to

         17  engage in real dialogue.

         18                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: You know,

         20  sure, there's laws against fraud. I mean, there's

         21  laws against murder and there's laws against

         22  shooting people. I still think it's good to do

         23  background checks on people who walk in the gun

         24  stores. So we try and prevent the murders from

         25  happening.
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          2                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: We don't just

          4  rely purely on law enforcement. So I think this is

          5  the same thing. Sure, I'm all for more resources for

          6  prosecutors and investigators to root out fraud and

          7  prosecute it. But I don't think that means that

          8  there necessarily aren't also cost-effective

          9  prophylactics that we can put in place. The issue

         10  before us is, is this such an animal, right?

         11                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Precisely.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: And your

         13  argument, I mean to an extent you're arguing there's

         14  laws against it, that means there's no such thing as

         15  cost-effective prophylactic. I'm sure you're not

         16  arguing that. You're saying this is not a

         17  cost-effective prophylactic. So, let me think about

         18  whether it is or not. Yes, there would be some

         19  burdens on legitimate -- is advertising legitimate?

         20  Absolutely. I personally have been, you know,

         21  advertised myself to my constituents, it's yes,

         22  that's what people do. But given that there is a

         23  genuine problem, what do you think of the policy

         24  trade-off of saying, well, we want the -- if you

         25  mean no-fault specialist, then we want you to get
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          2  your patients through referrals rather than through

          3  --

          4                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: From who? I mean,

          5  that's the key question here. You're dealing very

          6  often, especially in the boroughs where there's a

          7  large member -- a large number of medically

          8  underserved population, poor people who very often

          9  don't have their own insurance plans, they don't

         10  have family doctors, they use the City's Health and

         11  Hospitals Corporation and emergency rooms very often

         12  as their family first provider of care in emergency

         13  situations. They don't have other reimbursement

         14  plans. This is something that the Legislature has

         15  given to injured people by virtue of taking

         16  something away from them 30 years ago.

         17                 So, the question is, if it is legal

         18  to perform this, people have set up a clinic in a

         19  part of town that is otherwise habitually

         20  under-served by the rest of the medical provision

         21  community, all right? Why can they not take out an

         22  add saying we're your family doctors? We accept all

         23  insurance plans, including no-fault? What is wrong

         24  with that? You wouldn't -- I mean, that's a

         25  rhetorical question.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Right.

          3                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: But we allow that

          4  of all sorts of people. You can go through all sorts

          5  of businesses and all sorts, and they'll tell you,

          6  we accept insurance plans, we accept no fault, we

          7  accept this, that and the other thing. To advertise

          8  the legitimate offering of an honest service to a

          9  potential --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I'd like to

         11  work with you on this because I think that there

         12  might be some common point area of agreement where

         13  at least we could distinguish between legitimate and

         14  harmful forms of advertising, certainly the use of

         15  individuals strikes me, to identify accident

         16  victims, and try and bring them in is so fraught

         17  with the potential for abuse that whatever

         18  legitimate, you know, advertising benefit it has is

         19  outweighed by the harm.

         20                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Oh, hold on. I

         21  don't regard a runner who is going to take cash

         22  under the table for delivering people to a

         23  fraudulent provider so they can bill a legitimate

         24  carrier for money he has no right to as a form of

         25  advertising.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Okay.

          3                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: All right? That's

          4  not what I thought you meant by advertising.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: All right.

          6                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Advertising to me

          7  is, you take out an ad, you hang out a shingle, you

          8  send around flyers, you put --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: I'm not as

         10  good a lawyer and so therefore not as precise, but

         11  thank you. You're absolutely right, I was imprecise.

         12                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Folks should have

         13  no protection by this Council or anybody else. And I

         14  would agree with the insurance industry

         15  representatives here today, to the extent that they

         16  rightfully denominate the people who are gaming this

         17  system as thuggs, the point is there are other

         18  people here whose rights hang in a tender balance,

         19  and we do not want to -- I think what Mr. Israel was

         20  trying to respond to the Chairperson before about,

         21  we have to -- the Council has the responsibility of

         22  striking the balance between whether it is cost

         23  effective, whether it is otherwise effective, how

         24  many other people are going to be affected, in what

         25  measure and to what extent in order to accomplish
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          2  what degree of good.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Yes.

          4                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: And I don't want

          5  to, you know, arrogate unto ourselves expertise, but

          6  we practice in this field every day, and our

          7  considered opinion, and we open ourselves to the

          8  Council for further, if you want anything from us.

          9  We're right across City Hall Park at 132 Nassau

         10  Street, we would be glad to provide you with

         11  anything you want. But our experience teaches us

         12  that this bill, the way it's constituted now, will

         13  do far more harm across the board to almost every

         14  definable group of intended and unintended person

         15  involved in it than it would do good. And that's a

         16  serious problem, especially when the fraudsters are

         17  gaming us all.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

         19                 In the absence of the chair, Kendall,

         20  you have the floor.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Thank you,

         22  David. I want to go back to a couple of statements

         23  that were made, and I'm reminded by what the Borough

         24  President said, that in Brooklyn, for example, we

         25  see all these out-of-state plates all over the
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          2  place.

          3                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Right.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: And these

          5  folks, it's not that they're from out-of-state,

          6  they're reside in Brooklyn and New York, they live

          7  right here, but we've seen that, how could you say

          8  that we're having such a great reduction, in terms

          9  of the problem that we are having in terms of the

         10  insurance?

         11                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: That's a very great

         12  question that doesn't have a short answer. But what

         13  I'll try and tell you is this: The rate making of

         14  New York State, when the Borough President's Task

         15  Force asked both the insurance industry and the

         16  State Insurance Department for information and

         17  statistics on rate-making and flex-rating and

         18  various things like that, they were essentially

         19  rebuffed and never got the information.

         20                 The greatest mystery in insurance

         21  today in New York is how rates are arrived at, all

         22  right? And other states give far more favorable

         23  rates than New York, even with or without factoring

         24  in the no-fault issues. You heard the insurance

         25  people tell you that no-fault PIP, Personal Injury
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          2  Protection, is very often what you will see on the

          3  records when you look for it. You look for no fault,

          4  you'll never find it. It's under PIP or BI, Bodily

          5  Injury, all right? Those premiums are a tiny portion

          6  of the premiums that are charged. Other states have

          7  better rates with regard to comprehensive, with

          8  regard to glass and auto glass. It's a very complex

          9  rate structure.

         10                 The important thing is that their

         11  loss ratio has gone down some 30 percent, yet their

         12  premium reduction has gone down five to ten percent.

         13  All right, there's a lag in the catch, giving them

         14  the benefit of the doubt that they ever would catch

         15  up, there's a lag in the catch-up between the actual

         16  experience of a downturn or an improvement of the

         17  fraud situation, and it being reflected to the rate

         18  payers or the premium payers. It's a very complex

         19  question, and it's not given to easy formulations.

         20  But, yes, one of the ways people react to this is

         21  you see out-of-state plates, but I'm sure you see

         22  many more out-of-state plates in Park Slope than you

         23  will in Bensonhurst or Fort Green for that matter.

         24  People who have second homes, register them in their

         25  second homes. Very often the states have
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          2  requirements for registering a car. You can't just

          3  write to Utah and say send me a plate, I live in

          4  Brooklyn, I want lower rates. It doesn't work. You

          5  have to have an address there. And the people that

          6  we're worried about, the people who will be

          7  disenfranchised by this bill will lose an option for

          8  choice of their medical providers, and now that the

          9  window is very short, they have only 30 days to get

         10  their claim in or they're out, no matter what, all

         11  right? They don't have second addresses to register

         12  their cars in.

         13                 The people, with all due respect to

         14  Borough President Markowitz, the people that he sees

         15  with the out-of-state plates, are not the people

         16  that this Council most needs to protect.

         17                 MR. ISRAEL: Notably, there's nothing

         18  in this bill that requires any of the actual savings

         19  from this bill to be passed onto the rate payers by

         20  the insurance carriers.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: All right. I

         22  had the feeling that those folks, the providers who

         23  get paid for workmen comp or for no fault, that they

         24  had a standard rate that was set and is based on the

         25  ICD-9 or the CPT codes, the medical codes; isn't
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          2  that the case? If that is not the case, why are we

          3  having this problem?

          4                 MR. ISRAEL: There is a schedule of

          5  fees that every provider must submit their bill in

          6  accordance with, and so I think that Mr.

          7  Dittenhoefer had commented that that might have been

          8  a misrepresentation earlier, but that will not

          9  account for bills that are being submitted for

         10  treatment that was never rendered which we would

         11  certainly agree needs to be --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, it has

         13  nothing to do with -- it has nothing to do with the

         14  provider that's out providing the service, it has to

         15  do with not providing the service, and it has to do

         16  with fraudulent behavior.

         17                 Because if all those regulations are

         18  set up already, and your rates are based on, like

         19  the regular rates in the medical field, I don't see

         20  actually how by having this bill it will change

         21  that, because people even in the medical field, they

         22  billed for services that they didn't provide.

         23                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: It won't change it

         24  for them. It will change it for the honest doctors

         25  who now have a new layer of record keeping,
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          2  paperwork and reporting requirements to already cut

          3  into their marginal profit levels when they're

          4  making a limited amount that they can charge on all

          5  of these services.

          6                 And what you just said, you know, if

          7  you turn it around, and look at it the other way,

          8  the people that we're worried about are not the

          9  people that overcharge under the fee schedule,

         10  that's usually worked out in no fault arbitration,

         11  and they take it to arbitration, they deny the bill,

         12  the bill either doesn't get paid or the arbitrator

         13  awards what they should have billed or they give you

         14  what they should have billed or nothing at all, and

         15  that's not where the fraud is. Where the fraud is,

         16  is exactly what you just put your finger on, the

         17  people who are billing for treatment they don't

         18  give. You don't need new laws for that. You don't

         19  need to burden the honest people with new recording

         20  and new licensure and new requirements for that, you

         21  need investigation for that, because real easy, as

         22  the insurance people told you, I mean we listened to

         23  a gentleman tell us about a number of anecdotes they

         24  had where they went in and people, they send in an

         25  investigator, the insurance people have divisions
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          2  within the carriers that do this, the District

          3  Attorneys' Offices could do this. If a mill is truly

          4  a mill and is set up and they're billing, the only

          5  way you make profit on no fault is to bill a lot for

          6  stuff you don't do. Well, if you don't do it, it's

          7  easier to catch than if you do it and over-bill for

          8  it. And there's no reason to make the honest suffer

          9  along with the crooks, and that's despite better

         10  intentions than that. That's what this bill will do.

         11  It's to make a growing concern of a medical practice

         12  where you decided to specialize in no fault, your

         13  profit margin is cut to the bone. Off the top of my

         14  head, for a visit it's $72 or something like that.

         15  In some other plans it's comparable to the co-pay.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Well, I don't

         17  accept workmen comp, no no fault, because of the

         18  different forms you have to go through, the length

         19  of time it takes to get paid and all of that, and

         20  the pay is small anyway.

         21                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: It's a disaster for

         22  an honest doctor.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, I don't

         24  know if we're going to really change much by this

         25  bill or not. It becomes a question as to what we're
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          2  trying to accomplish. That's why I'm asking all

          3  these questions. I want to know what we are trying

          4  to accomplish if we put this bill in place, whether

          5  it's going to help the consumer or not, or if we're

          6  going to really find ways to really catch the people

          7  who are really committing the crime.

          8                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Right.

          9                 And another thing that I just think

         10  we all need to be -- I hate to jump in on

         11  everything, but certainly very close to my heart and

         12  my principles, is you mentioned a word that's a very

         13  important word, the consumer. There's more than one

         14  consumer the Council needs to be worried about.

         15  There's the consumer of the product of automobile

         16  insurance, and they're very important, but there's

         17  also the consumer of medical treatment, the injured

         18  person, and they're important too. They're sort of

         19  like on the sidelines of this debate. The more and

         20  more you take and marginalize, honest providers who

         21  leave, and we see this every day, they're leaving

         22  the no fault field and going to other things or

         23  other places. They're setting up in Nassau County,

         24  across the water. They're setting up in Upper

         25  Westchester, across your border. Because they can't
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          2  make it on the continuingly arcane levels of

          3  regulation that is being placed upon them. It's a

          4  very serious problem when the only clinic in the

          5  neighborhood leaves town, and they were honest docs

          6  and they were playing by the rules, and they just

          7  can't do it anymore, the government is forcing them

          8  out.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Can you

         10  explain the difference between the runners and the

         11  expediters, and if we're going to do a bill that is

         12  anti-runner, the guy who is running might be -- I

         13  don't seem him as necessarily the criminal. I see

         14  the person who is not doing the job. Because if

         15  you're going to say the runner is a criminal, then

         16  those people who make referrals to a lawyer's office

         17  and the lawyer may give him a fee for making a

         18  referral or giving them something, you're calling

         19  them a criminal.

         20                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Yes, he is.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes.

         22                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Yes, he is

         23  currently, sir.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Yes.

         25                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: A lawyer may not
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          2  share a fee with a non-lawyer; a lawyer may not pay

          3  for a case.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: But he might

          5  be working for the lawyer, he's not sharing his fee.

          6                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: He's not allowed to

          7  do that. It's currently against the law, it's

          8  against professional ethics. A lawyer will get

          9  disbarred for that. They can't do it. I can't do it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So --

         11                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: For 25 years you

         12  can't do it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: If it's

         14  illegal, then it's illegal for a runner already, so

         15  why do we need to put another law to make it

         16  illegal?

         17                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: I take my lead from

         18  that on the testimony of the people who know better

         19  than I on that, and that was the District Attorney.

         20                 I believe the DA said that that would

         21  be -- it's not necessary but it would be a bright

         22  line. It would be an easier way for law enforcement

         23  to go. It makes their proof easier at trial and more

         24  importantly, it makes it easier for them to grab

         25  them, flip them, and they flip them to get the guy
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          2  you want to get, the fellow who is paying him to go

          3  do his dirty work. Because most of these people who

          4  are runners, let's face it, nobody goes through the

          5  school system and goes to college, I want to be a

          6  no-fault runner, right? This is a job that you take

          7  because you don't have another job, or because this

          8  is an underground black market economy that you have

          9  been sucked into in some portion. Maybe that's the

         10  sucking --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: There you go.

         12                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: But it's nobody's

         13  choice, all right?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: So, it's

         15  illegal already. So, why --

         16                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: It's illegal.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: If it's

         18  illegal already, I don't see --

         19                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: The DA's think it

         20  will help. I don't think it will hurt. We're

         21  unalterably opposed to it. A good, honest, ethical

         22  lawyer can't do it anyway. So, you want to make it

         23  doubly, double double double, really serious illegal

         24  in New York, I'm all for you. I like that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: It's chicken soup.
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          2                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Chicken soup can

          3  never hurt.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON QUINN: Thank you.

          5                 Just for the final statement of the

          6  hearing, I wanted to make it known that the medical

          7  society of the State of New York has submitted

          8  testimony in opposition to the bill. It's submitted

          9  by Donald R. Moore, the Senior Vice President and

         10  General Counsel for the Medical Society of the State

         11  of New York, and their testimony will be submitted

         12  in full to the record in opposition to the bill as

         13  presently written.

         14                 That said, we are going to adjourn

         15  this hearing. Happy Halloween to everybody.

         16                 MR. DITTENHOEFER: Thank you all.

         17                 MR. ISRAEL: Thank you.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 4:30 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )
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          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified
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         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the
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